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.. LEAD POISONING AND CHILDREN

-

. s
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 2, 1982
* R . - . . .- N
‘ House 0F REPRESENTATIVES,.
SyBcoMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT, Y.
. ) CoMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND (JOMMERCE, ,
-F ' #- Washington, D.C.

7’

The subcommittee met, pursuant tb call, at 10:20 a.m., in room
2392, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Henry A. Waxman
{chairman) presiding.’ . ‘

Mr. WaxmaN. The meeting of the spbcommittee will come to
order: Several of our-calleagues will be joining us in a short time,.
after they respond to the vote on the House floor; but we are late
in getting this meeting started, so I would like us to pegin,at this
time. ) ” )

This morning, the subcommittee will examine one of our most

discouraging public health problems: the prevéntable poisonirg of
our Natidn’s children by lead. :
« According to a recent national survey, an unacteptable 4 percent
ol the children in this ¢ountry aged 6 months through 5 years have
high blood-lead levels. The problem is particularly acute among
poor, minority children in ipner-city neighborhoods.

Lead poisoning threatens the life chances of these children. De-
pending on the extent of the pof’soning/,aa child may experience re-
tardation, behavioral difficulties, and learning disorders. '

The real tragedy is that this damage is preventable. We have the
technology to detect high blood-lead levels. Screening children. for
lead poisoning is not vexy expensive, and the cost pales in compari-
son.to the cost of educating and treating them once their brains
have been damaged. > e

This is not a new problem. Over 10 years ago, Congress enacted
legislation to address it. Known as the lead-based paint poisoning
prevention program, the legislation made grant funds available, to
local governments primarily to detect and treat poisoning’ that
occurs when young children eat lead-based paint. Between 1972
and 1980, the program screened nearly 3% million children. =~ '

In 1981, the Reagan administration proposed to repeal this pro-
gram and_to put 75 percent of the funding into a large preventive
health block grant with.10 other programs. Eventually, it was in-
cluded in the maternal and child health services block grant, and
the funding was cut 18 percent. . ‘

The result'is sadly predictable. Funding for lead screening efforts
plummeted from $8.4 million in fiscal year 1981 to $&9 million in
fiscal year 1983. At the same time, the.cost of a screening went up.
In the 24 States for which data.are available, staff estimates that
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“the number of children screened will drop from nearly 1.1 milliori
in fiscal year 1981 to about 640,000 in this fiscal year. '

I would at this point ask unanimous consent to insert in the
record a legislative history of the lead-based paint poisoning pre- -
vention program and a table describing Federal funding for this ac-
tivity from fiscal year 1981 to fiscal year 1983, on a State-by-State v
basis.
. The purpose of this hearing i§ to explore the consequences, of
these disturbing trends for the children and the Federal Govern-
ment. /\\
What aré the causes of lead poisoning, and what effect does it \
have on the_ health and the life chances of children?

What has happened to Federal, State, arfd loeal efforts to address
childhood lead poisoning? .

How can we avoid further loss of resources for lead screening
and treatment? s .

[The legislative history and table referred to follow::  ° ,

\
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' = LEGISLATIVS RISTORY OF % ¢ i
LEAD-BASER PAINT POISUNING PWEVENT1." IECGRAM \
’ Sudan Bailey N
Analyst in Social Legislation
- <, ‘Education and Public Welfare Division
. September 28, 1982 : ‘.

AN

T. ENACTMENT OF THE LEAD~BASED PAINT POISONING, PREVENTION PROGRAM

In 1971; Congress en;cted the Lead-Based Paint ﬁéiscning Pré;enticﬂ Acts
P.L: 91-695, to authorize programs to eliminate the cau;es cf‘lead—based paint
;oisuning and detect and treat incidents of such poiscﬂings.~ Prior to that time,
no Federal ;;ehcrity existed to specifically f;;d,guch prc}ects. However, some
‘finagtial assistancé was avallable to local communities for screening and treat-
went services under Section 314 of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act and -
title V, Maternal and‘Child Healtqﬁénd Crippled Childrens Se;§ice5, of the So-

clal Security Act. 1/ In addition, other lccalit&es funded their own lead control

programs to which the Department of Health, E&ucaticn, and Melfare (HEW) pro-

.

vided technical assistance, 2/ ’ ¢ v

Congress enacted P.L. 91-695 in response to concerns that childhood leade . .
A - .
poisgning wae reaching epidemic proportions in most large cities, Hearings on
the proposed legislation invariably documented the cause of such poisoning as

the repeated ingestlon of chips and flakes of lead-containing paint and plaster

from the walls, windowsill3, and woodwork of old and poorly maintained pre-

Wworld War II honmes. 1/ In general, these residences were located in inner cities,
. ] ,
inhabited by low-income families wigh large numbers cf children. As a result, the

R \

L/ U'.S.. Congress. Sep;:e. Labor agd Public Welfare Subcommittee on
Health., Hearing on Lead Based Paint Poisoning, 91st Cong., 2d Sess.,
* Nov. 23, 1970. p. 200-201,° ’

2/ Ibid, p. 43. .
M . 3/ U.S. Congress. House, Banking and Curfency Subcommittee on Housing.
Hearing to Provide Federal Assistance for Eliminating the' Causes of Lead-Based .
Paint Polsoning, 91st Cong., 2d Sess.,, July 22 and 23, 1970. p. 10.
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high fncidence of lead polsoning was alwost solely cdnfined to young children’
a

s

living in city slums. 4/ N

. .
About 200 children died from lead poisoning each year with 2 year olds
- . o T
accounting for more than 50 percent of those deaths. Other children suffered

- \srreversible brain injury. An estimated 400,000 children per yeat were lead
a
"sick, according to the Senate Labor and Public Welfare Committee report on
the 1971 legislation. Althouéh 12,060 to 16,000 children were lnﬁually treated
for lead polsoning and survived, half of them remained mentally tetarded. s/
The House Banking and Currency Committ;e 6/ report on the legislation stated

that children inflicted with lead poisoning tequired lifetime medical treatment

o
estimated to cost about $250,000 per child. The cost of removing lead paint from

cesddential housing units was relatively small in comparison, 7/
P.L. 91-695 authorized two project grant programs to be administered by
. .
DHEW, Title I ofcthe Act authorized graats to local governments to detect and _
] ’

treat ilncidents of lead-based paint poisoning, Localities were to offer:

<
4/ u.s, Congress. Housev” Committee on Banking and Currency. Lead-Based
paint Elimination Act of 1970. Report to Accompany H.R., 19172, House Rept.
No. 91-1463, 91st Cong., 2d Sess. Washington, U.S. Govt? Print. Off., 1977.
p. 2.

2/ U.S. Copgress. Senate, Committee on Labor and Public Welfare.
Lead-Based Paint Elimination Act of 1970, Report to Accoumpany H.R/19172.

Senate Rept. No. 91-1432, 91st Cong., 2d Sess. Washington, U.S. Govt, Print.
- 0ff., 1970. p. 2.

E/ The authority for the Lead-Based Paint Poisonir ® Prevention program
was transfeEFed in 1974 from the House Banking and Curre cy Committee to the
Interstate and Forefgp Commerce Committee as a result of changes made in
commitree jurisdictjon by the Bolling Committee.

17/ U.s., Congress, House. Committee on Banking and Currency. Lead-Based v
Paint Elimination Act of 1970, Report to Accompany H.R., 19172. p. 3.

- v .
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(1) educational programa to alert the community to*the health hazards and prevalenge
s .

of lead~based paint poisoning among children of inner city areas; (2) testing

- ; B . .
programs to detect incidents of lead-based paint po{soning among community residents, .
and prompc medical treatment for afflicted individuals; (3) intensive followup

programs to insure identified cases of lead-based paint poisoning were procecced
against further exposure to lead-based paints in their living environment; 'and

(4) other Sctivities to eliminate lead-based paint poisoning. Title II of the

Act authorized grants to local.governments to conduct testing programs to detect
[4

the presence of lead-based éaincs on vesidential surfaces, and then to eliminate
such hazards from all interior surfaces, porches, and exterior sSurfaces to which
children were commonly exposed. '

Ticl; III of the Act required the Secretary of Housing and Urban Develop—

ment (HUD), in consultation with the Secretary of HEW, to operate a demonstration

and research program to study the problep of lead-based paint poisoning in the

U.S., particularly in ucban aveas. Title IV of P.L. 91-695 prohibited.the fu-

1}
tute use of lead-based paint in residential structures constructed ot tehabili-
.

tated by the Federal government ot with any form of Federal assistance.

+ The Act also defined

~

"lead-based paint" to mean any paint containing more

than 1 percent lead by weight (calculated as lead metal) in the total non~
volatile content of liquid paints or in the dried film of paint already applied.

P.L. 91-695 authorized the following amounts for these programs:

FY 1971 FY 1972 Ve

. —_— _— A

Title I $3,330,000 $ 6,660,000

Title II 5,000,000 10,000,000

Ticle TI1. 1,670,000 3,340,000

N Total $10,000,000 $20,000,000 .

-




To PROGRAM AMENDMENTS

s The prograas first authorized by P.L. 912695 were revised and extended

.

»

tarouga FY 1974 8/ by P.L. 93-151,and :hrouéh FY 1978 by P.L. 94-317.
These Acts did not change the basic fegislnticn. Major amendments centered
iround detining a safe c;n:en: levél of lead in paint. In 1573, P.L. 93-157 changed
rhe detf{nition of leaq~bnsed paint to Provide that prior to Decémber 31, 1974, any
paint ¢ontaining more than 0.5 percent lead would be considered lqu-based. The
At alsc directed the Consumer Product Safety Cowmission (CPSC) Chairman to conduct

frasedarch to Jetermine a safe gontent level of lead in residential‘paint products

:aqd report his findfags to Congress begcfe ?ecember 31, 1974, This requirement w.s
srompted by Congressional concern that while present research demonstrated that
o> percent lead was a safe standard, further research was needed tc.de:ermine a
;Q;Q precise level. Unless the CPSC Chaitman recommended lncchar leadnleval to be
safe (w*inh st{ll could not exceed 0. SZ), paint containing more’than 0.06 percen:
{ead by welght would be defined as lead based after Deceﬁpe{ 31, 1974..

In December kf?é, the CpSC Chairman recomwended :h51 Congress, ccncinefmthe

exlsting eequirement thd:tleah levels for interior rasidennial paitts remlie at

U.5 percent. Wowever, this decision was criticized, largely based on the research
. ¢ . LT ,"

supporting it, 9/

. B/ (he program was not reauthorized until FY 19745 FY 1973 fﬁnding was -
rovided under a an:inuing resolution. . . n
* ' ' .
Qi U.S. Congress. -House. Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce.
Yational Hegalch Promotion and Disease Prevention Act of 1976. Report to Accom
sany H.R. 12678. Mouse Rept. No. 94-1007, 9Ath Cong., 2d.Sess. Washington,

* LS. Gove. Princ. OFE., 1976, p. 19.

?
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As 2 result, {n 197%, P.L. 94-317 directed the CPSC to further study, con-

0 ~

dudet hearings, and consider recommendations from the Secretary of HEW and the National
. ';‘
Academy of Sclence to determine a safe lead level that could range between .06 percent
Al ~
and .5 percent. The Act then defined lead~based paint as paint containing more than

.06 percent lead by weight in the total nonvolatile content of the paint, or the

<

equivalent measure of lead in the dried film of paint already appl{gd, or both, un- ~
le;s th; CPSC’s study determlned‘nnother level to be safe (not to exceed 0.5 percent).
Currently the definition of lead content in paint remains at .06 percent.

In addition to redefinin® lead~based paint, P.L. 93-151 and P.L. 94~317
changéd authcrization levels. P.L. 93-151 significantly incceased program

authortzation levels to the folijywing amountss
S 3
1

TTNEY 1974 FY 1975
Title I  $25,000,000 $25,000,000
Tiele II 35,000,000 35,000,000

Ticle III _ 3,000,000 3,000,000

$63,000,000 $63£900,000

In contrast, P.L. 94~317 consolidated and decreased authorization levels for the
program to $10,000,000; 512,000,000; and $14,000,000 for FY 1976, FY 1977, and
FY 1978, respettively: These decreases related authorizations mere closely to amounts
appropriated for lead-based paint programs. Although $20,000,000 had been authorized

in FY 1972 for these aetivities, Congress appropriated $6,500,000. A more dramatic

L4
difference cccurred in FY 1975 when $63,000,000 was authorized for the program with

one-seventh of that amount-~$9,000,000~-appropriated.
P.L.*93~-151 and P.L. 94-317 also made a number of other amendments to the
lead-based paint programs. 1In 1973, P.L. 93~151 authorized grants, under tftle I,

to State agencies ro es%ablish centrali-ed laboratory facilities to analyze biological

and environmental lead speclimens obtained from’local lead~based paint poiscning
¢
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N detfect lon programp'nqd expanded the eligibilicy for-grantsvto private nonprofit N

orgaqﬁfations. The 1973 Act also prohibited the application of lead—haseq paint

to toys, furniture, and cooking or eating utensilsy In 1976, P.L.794-317 clari- . -
S, B

fied responsibilitiea for the agencies, DHEW, HUD, and CPSC, administering

~
hY

existing authorities under the legialation (DHEH, HUD, and CPSC).

, . In 1978, P.L. 95-626 repealed-titles Iclnd II of P.L. 91-695-and amended *
’

part A of title III of ‘the Public He.lﬁb Service Act to autho.ize the lead— s :
bared paint poisoning prevention prograus under Sec. 316. The ‘Act extended the

program through FY 1981 and authorized $14,000,000 for sach of the fiscal years

1979 and 1980, and $15,000,000 in FY 1981 for the program. . :
£
¥ . < I i .
III. CONSOLIDATION UNDER THE MCH BLOCK GRANT . '’ . !

The lead-based paint poisoning prevention program wag most recently amended
by the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, P.L. 97-35, which consolidated the

program under the MCH Services Block Grant with 7 other Federal health programs.

The Reagan.Administrltion: in its Budget proposal for FY 1982, originally pro—'

posed to consolidate 10 categorical programs including lead-based paint into a

Preventive Health Services Block Grant, and an additional 15 such programs o
- . - . 4

<cluding the MCH program into a Health Services Block Grant. Under.thege blocks,
States would decide on the use of block grant funds, services to be provided, . '
and ‘populations to be sprved. At tbg saﬁe,time, Federal funding for thede pro-
grams would be reduced. . ggp .
Concern was expressed that the inclusion of health programs for women and child-
ren in a block grant with other‘hpalth programs would séverely decrease funding: for

. - ’ - .
maternal and child health-related programs and reduce services available to these

populations. As a result of these concerns, as well as others, Congress enacged
. .
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P.L. 97-35 which consolidated certain major Federal health programs for wdﬁ!h~§nd
children into a single MCH Block Grant. According to ics report on the legislation,
the House Energy and Commerce Committee expected this consolidation to encourage
States to develop a more systematic and comprehensive approach to providing health
care to mothers :nd children, pur;;cularly thnse of low-income. 10/

Under cthe MCH Block, States elect the health services, including lead-
based paint poisoning prevention services, they wish to provide. Between 85
and 90 percent of the block grant appropriation is allotted among States based
on the State's proportion of total funds allotted to all States in FY 1981 under
ceréuin categorical programs now'included in the block. These categorical pro-
grams include MCH and ‘crippled childrens services, supplemental security in-
come services for disabled children, lead-based paint poisoning prevention,
genetic diseases, sudden infant death syndrome, hemophilia treatment centers,
and adolescent pregnancy. In order to receive an allotmeyt, States must spend
three State dollars Egr every four Federal dollars received through the block

grant. Between 10 and 15 percent of the block grant appropriation is reserved for

. MCH projects of regional and national significance, research and training, and

genetic disease and hemophilia progams. These programs are administered at
the Federal level.

P.L. 97-35 also required States to prepare annual reports describing their
intended program expenditures; statements of assurances; and reports on block grant

activities; as well as biennial audits on program expenditures.

10/ U.S. Congress. House. Committee on Energy and Commerce. Omnibua
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981.° Report to Accompany H.R. 3982. House
Rept. No. 97~158, Vol. II, 97th Cong., lst Sess. Washington, U.S. Govt. brint.
off., 1981. p. 50.

¢ .




IV, PROCRAN ACCOMPLLSIMENTS

3tnce the enactment of the lead based paint poisdning prevention program,
tte petcenrage of screened children found to have daﬁgéroua levels of lead in
:ger hloodstream has decreased from 7.5‘percent,1n 1472 to 4 percent id 1981,
Reryeen 1972 and 1980, },475,000 children wer; screenga by the program. Of that

number, 123,000 wvere, {dentified with lead toxicity. 11/ In 1981, 54 projects

were tunded under Sec. 3lb of the PHS Act. 12/ During that year, 535,000 children

wre acrecned with 22,000 fdentified with lead toxicity. 13/

It should be noted that ;lnhough these programs placed priority‘on screening
taner ity children for lead-based paint poLgoning, all childran‘yere screened to
detect this probiem. Hass screenings in the 1970s provided evidence that
Shildren reéxding in old inner clty slums vere at the highest rigk of lead
J'L;ungng, hut the problem of undue exposure to lead extended far beyond "lead
meltg” and the poor. 14/ The cause of severe lead poisoning, with rare exceptions,
remilns lugestion of paint or exposure to other high dose sources, such as in-
properly glazed earthenware, 15/ However, a more careful look at the lead
saurces in a4 child's environment has shown that airborne lead {particularly
lead scttled 1n dust and dirt), rvepresents an important source of exposure
which can cause minor or modervate elevation of blood lead levels. 16/

11/ Telephtne conversation with officials at the Centers for Disease
wimtrel (2N0), Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), September 1982.

127 Prine-pur from the Office of Maternal and Child Health, DHHS,
recelved Soptember 1982 I :

Telephone conversation with CDC officials, September 1982wy

~nisolm, Jullan J., Jr. and David H. 0'Hara, Lead Absorption in
Raltimore-Munich, Urban and Schuarzenberg, 1962. p. 6.

Ibid, p. 7.

Ihid, p. 5.
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+ FUNDIMG HISTORY, FY 1971-FY 1982 .
v
Authorization Appropriation .
k]
- .
1971 510,000,000 -
1972 o 20,000,000 $ 6,500,000
1973 ' 2/ 6,500,000 2/ 3/
- . .
. 0
1974 - 63,000,000 11,000,000 3/*
v . 1975 . 63,000,000 9,000,000
1976 ! 10,000,000 . 3,500 ,006
° 1977 - 12,000,000 ' 8,500,000 ’
"1978 - . 14,000,000* . 8'.590,00'0
1979 14,000,000 ) 10,250,000 ) .
. R '
L 1980 14,000,000 ' 11,250;,000‘
[ .
. <
1981 a3 15,080,000 10,148,00!j
1982 ' T4/ 4/
A e
=
1/ No appropriations were made for the research authcrity specified under
title IIT of the P,L, 91-695. However, research has been conducted as directied ~ v
by title III by the Department of Housing and Urban Development under its gg;ieral
research authoricy. -
2/ The program was not veauthorized until FY 1974; FY 1973 funding was
provided under a continuing resolution. . ‘
k)
3/ An additional $4,500,000 was appropriated in FY 1973 but waa impounded
by the Admininistration. This :Zount was later made available in FY 1974
bringing the funding level for rhe program up to $11,000,000 for that year.
4/ P.L. 97-35 authorized”$373,000,000 for the MCH Services Block Urant
for FY 1582. Congress appropriated $347,520,000,under a continuing resolution
for FY 1982. An additional $24,480,000 was provided under urgent supplemental
appropriations increasing funding to $372,000,000 for FY 1982. .
o Source: Financial Management Branch, Centefs for Disease Control, DHHS.
-
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Mr. Waxman. I would like to have the recordinote that we will,
at this point, insert any opening statements that our Cplleagues
wish to have made, had they been here, or to insert it even if uhey
have not prepared a statement to deliver i in person.

Our first witness is Dr. David J. Sencer, Commissioner of Health
for the city of New York, andi, irk A. Johnson -assistant dlrector,
National Coalition for Lead™ Control, Center for Smence in the
Public Interest.

I would like to welcome you both to this hearing today.

Dr. Sencer is familiar to us, both in his former capacity as Direc-
- tor of the Centers for Disease Control and in his present posmon as
Commissioner of Health for the city of New York.

I hope you will give us the views of the Federal and local govern-
ments with regard to this problem. _

Ms. Mikulski. “

Ms. MixuLskl. I apologjze that there was a delay in my, arnval
In addition, I would just like to.comment, Mr. Chairman—I would -

. like to thank you for holding this most important hearing on lead

poisoning and children.

You and I have done long battle on somethlng called the Clean
Air Act, and one of the-areas we were most concerned about was
- the auto emissions and the lead content in that'because of its
public health damages.

We have not yet resolved the Clean Air Act. We know that we
ﬁave a mechanism in this country that is realizable in achieving
public health controls in this country, our special program to dea]
with lead poisoning prevention.“We kave gone to something called
block grants, and that has meant that wonderful programs are now
competing with each other for limited resources.

I thank you for holding this hearing to seé what is the impact of
that, lgcause the Dead-based Poisoning Act is now in the maternal
child heafth block grant.

I came to this Congress with a background in somal work, and I .

" remember, as a young welfare worker, going thtbugh the streets of

Baltimore, and worklng with our local public health department,
then one of the best in the country, because one of the enormous
problems was the problem of lead paint in Baltimore’s ghettos..

Even though we have accomplished a lot, we still have very seri-
ous problems. I am proud to say that in 1972 Baltimore was one of
the first to establish a program when a natlonal program was es-
tablished. When I talk to my mayor and to the people at the Ken-
nedy Institute, running a program like this, I ﬁnd the need is still
there.

Our problem is that the money is not there.

Now, I know what has happened in Baltimore, but I tha:\x;% you
for holdlng this hearing so we can see nationally if what is pen-
ing to the demise of my program in Baltimore is also happening
naglonally, and what is the impact of this on children, because if
we can’t protect children from lead-based poisoning, I think we
have serious national problems.

I know we are debating nuclear waste on the House floor. We
have been exploring what to do in case we are.bombed in a nuclear
war.

b
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So: p&)ple said we should paint our houses with lead paint; 35 -
coats would do. A better way to protect America’s children would
be to rid housing of that lead-based paint. .
Mr. WaxMaN. Thank you for your statement and kind werds to
me. ° .
Dr. Sencer, we have your prepared statement and will make that
a part of the record.

STATEMENT OF DAVID J. SENCER, M.D., COMMISSIONER OF
- * HEALTH, NEW YORK CITY .

Dr. SEncER. Thark you, Mr. Chairman, Ms. Mikulski. My pre-
pared statement is not very well prepared, because yesterday I was
in the State capital of New York State trying to find out what is
happening to our lead-based-paint program in New' York City. I
had to find out bafore I could prepare the statement. ‘

I am here today representing not only New York City, but also-
the Conference of City Health Officers. I do not propose to talk
much about ‘the problems of lead-based-paint poisoning. There are
others téstifying today who are much more expert in that area
thgn I am. I would like to talk a little bit about the extent of the
problem; how the funds are distributed, and the problems we are
facing in trying to deal with these issues at the present time.

The problem is one that is a national problem, but not an equal-
ly distributed problem throughout the Nation. It is not equally dis-
. tributed within the cities of this country. In New York City, for ex-
ample; we have boroughs that have practically no lead-based-paint
poisoning ‘problem, and in other areas where as many.as 3% per-
cent of the.children screened have elevated blood-lead levéls. This
correlates very nicely.with the older areas of any.of our major
Northern cities where the older housing was painteds with lead-
based paint. The costs of removing the paint, or renovating ‘the
housing, would be so astronomical that we have decided the sim-
plest way is to protect children is by early education and treatment
of those found to be in difficulty. ‘ '

Lead poisioning is one of two Federal programs incorporated into
the block grants but which are ve.y unequally distributed through-
out the country. Both are basically community environmental sani-
tation problems. The other program is the rodent control-program, .
. which ‘again is a problem of the.inner-city slums, which is being
attacked as a health problem because of the prospect of rat bites.

. But the basic problem is our inner city. I would like to discuss

these together because the etiologies are poverty and the mecha-
nism of funding is similar. . . .

When the Federal Government first began supporting State and
local public health programs, the funding was a formula grant in
the 1940's. This now is euphemistically being called a block grant,
which some health officers say is a way of blocking services from
reaching the people who are really i need of them. The' formula
grant at that time was for general public health programs, and it
was derived by population figures weighted by per capita income
with a minimum amount being guaranteed for each State. Since
this was for general support of public health programs, therg was
no attempt made at that time to address'the extent of problems.

Ty,
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When it became obvious that there-were serious public health
problems in this country that were geographlcally disproportionate-
ly distributed,*€ongress appropriated moneys for project grants dis-
tributed on the basis of health problem needs rather than by the
number of people. It was found that there was nd way in which a
formula could be developed that would not be totally ‘dominated by
population.

In the 1960’s, when there was increased concern over the failure
of tuberculosis to respond to normal control measures, grants were
made available for enhancing tuberculosis control. We tried to de-
velop a formula to meet the needs, but there was no way ih which
a formula could be developed that would give more money to a
State such as Arkansas which had a major tuberculosis problem
without at the same time giving equal funds to Iowa, which had

- practically no tuberculosis.

In the 1940’s and 1950’s grants were made available to States for
venereal disease control and tuberculosis control with a pass-
through mechanism similar to a contract. In 1962, with the passage
of the Immunization Assistance Act, grants were made directly to
-city and local hegalth departments with the concurrence of the
State health department. These programs have been suceessful in
meeting the goals for which they were established by Congress. In
New York City, for example, we have had 12 cases of indigenous
measles this past year, and the last case was in September. .

The lead-based-paint program and the rat grants have beén tra-
ditionally to urban areas. This is wheré the problem 1s. As these
programs have been blended into general. maternal and ¢hild
health and prevention grants, they have lost their identity of fund-
ing and have become general support again.

It is easy to say that State government will make the decision to
continue these programs. Simultaneously with .pufting these grants
into a block has come the 25-percent reduction that you have men-
tioned. If a State wants to focus on a problem that is more équally
distributed thrbqghout its populatlon in maternal child health—for
examniple, teenage pregnancy—this is-an easieér dec151ox;1~ to make be-
cause it is throughout the whole State. But the money has to come
from those programs which had"at -one point been categorical. .
There is nothing to prevent the State from taking these funds from
lead-based-paint programs to put.into something else.

Congress has recognized the unequal distribation of disease in
dealing with veneéreal disease and immunization, and has recog-
nized that reimbursement programs. such as medicaid do not ad-
dress these issues, they will not pay for the followup of venereal
disease cases for example. These are coBts. that public health agen-
cies have to bear themselves. Congress in the past has maintained

T% ategorical approach to a551st1ng programs that prevent disease
in $pite of the administration’s efforts to lump these with other ac-
tivities. Veneteal disease .and immunization still stand as separate
_programs.

I am a realist, and I recognize that increased Federal support at
this time’is unhkely for our programs. I am, However, an optlmlst
and I hope that Congress is realistic and can find a manner in
which to assure the continuation of categorlcal support. to those
programs which’ are targeted to help the poor in our inner cities.

< .
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N Thank you. [ will be glad to answer any questions that you might
ave. :
Mr. WaxmaN. Thank you, Dr. Sencer.

Could you estimate the cost to the State or the Federal Govern-
ment of paying fot long-term care for: poisoned children?

Dt. SENCER. In 1976 there was an estimate of a quarter of a mil-
lion dollars oyer a lifetime of a child. A more recent estimate in a-
book on lead-gased-paint poisoning estimates that the social cost of
. excessive childhood lead approaches $1 billion annually.

Mr. Waxman. Now, our estimates are that New York State has
_cut lead poisoning funds by 19 percent, which is less than most
other States. Can you estimate the number of children Wwho are not
being screened as a result of the cutback in New York? -
Dr. SENCER. This is a proposed cut for the future. We are able to
continue screening at about the same level that we had before.
New York State did not accept management of the block grant
until this year, so we have not been as hurt as other parts of the
country. However, in the next year that although we-may be able
to screen almost as many children, the actual screening is not the
expensive pdrt. It is the followup of the children, bringing them to
needed diagnostic services, that is’expensive and is in.jeopardy. We
estimate that we are going to probably have to diminish our activi-
ties by 25 to 30 percent to meet our increased costs of operation.
Coupled with the increase in cost and the decrease in amount of
moneys available from the State, I think there will be about 30 per-
cent fewer‘children followed than there are at the present time.
Mr. Waxman. What does that' mean? You can do the screening.
That means you measure the level of lead in the blood? o
Dr. SENCER. Yes, as part of- our routine well-baby care in certain
areas of the city where we know that there is a possibility of eating
lead-based paint, this is part of our routine infant care. When a-
child gets a-hemoglobin, they get a finger prick that can be rapidly
screened for lead. *
Mr. WaxMaN. You know this information and when you find- ele-
vated levels, what happens? .o
Dr. Sencer: This means bringing the child back for additional
' blood tests to confirm that finding. It means investigating the
+ home to see whether there are exposed suriaces, instituting correc-
tive action, at times taking legal action against the landlord and
the cost of bearing part of treating the child after that. Those are
the kinds of things that we will not be able to do. ,

Mr. WaxMmaN. In other words, you will tell most likely the
mother of a child who has high levels of lead in the blood that her
child has high levels of lead in the blood and if she can go do some-
thing about it, she should go do something about it. That may
mean that they will have to go out and pay for services. '

Dr. SEnCER. If a ¢hild has an urgently high level, we will find a
way to do it. The problem comes up that by not being able to do
the community work we cannot get back to the' houses. to make
suge this does not happen again. We know that the same families
will come back unless action is taken in the home. These are the
sorts of things we will not be able to do.

Mr. WaxmaN. You talked about the block grant and we did
create a block’'grant to have the States take over-this program with

~
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. less money and have this program complete with other programs.
Secretary Schweiker said that we are going to have the States vol-
untarily gather data on their maternal and child health efforts and
JHHS will look for data in these reports. Have you received ‘guide-
lines from HHS or the'State for reporting on'lead poisoning? ™ .

Dr. SENCER. We have not received those as yet. As program opér-
ators we will maintain a certain basic level of information so we
can make plans with our reduced gesources. Whether our type of
data-gathering is going to be consonant with the rest of the country
so that logical decisions can be made in the future, I cannot say.

Mr. Waxman. Thank' you very much for your testimony. Mr.
Leland, do you have any questions for Dr. Sencer? '

Mr. LeranD. No, thank you. ) .

Mr. WaxMaN. We thank you for your testimony. It  has been
helpful tous. -~ N o o

Mr. Johnson, before I call upon you I would like to call Dr.
George Hardy from the Centers for Disease Control to testify. ,
Please stay where you are. Dr. Hardy is representing thé Reagan
administration. He is well known to this committee, having worked

" with the former chairmaff, Mr. Harley Staggers, for some time, and
.now serving as Assistant Director of the Centers for Disease Con-\\
trol. I am pleased to see you again in your new capacity, and I .am
anxious to hear the message you bring us from the administration.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE E. HARDY, Jr., M.D., CENTERS FOR DIS-
EASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES "

Dr. Harpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your kind welcome.

Mr. WaxManN. Your prepared statement will be made part of the
record. We would like to ask you to summarize it so we will have a
full opportunity for questions and answers.

Dr. Harpy. I willbe pleased to summarize. . = | o

The occurrence of lead poisoning in children ‘through direct expo-
sure was first reported in Queensland, Australia, in .1892. The

. source of lead in these children remained a mystery until 1904,

~ when lead paint.was implicated. Over the years, a series of scientif-
ic events have shown the devastating effect$ (i.e., pogr school per-
formance and overt mental retardation) of lead poisoning on the
brains of young children, documented first in the 1940’s. In the
1950's and 1960’s, hospitals in a few large cities such as Boston,
New York, Chicago, Philadelphia, and Baltimore began systemati-
cally to screen high-risk children for lead poisoning. In-1979, Dr.
Herbert Needleman, then with the Boston Children’s Hospital,
demonstrated the adverse effects of low-dose lead exposure. These
Tffects include poor academic performance. and hehavioral prob-
ems.

There are many sources of lead in the environment. These in-
clude water, air,.and food as background contributors. The usual
high-dose sources are lead in paint and lead in dust and soil. The
lead in dust and soil derives from lead in paint, lead from auto-
mobile and industrial emissions, and from previous land use,
among others. . -~
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In 1970, the Surgeon General issued a statemeilt which’ focu.sed'

-.attention on prevention of childhood lead poisoning. The Congress

gave support to this effort by enactment of the Lead Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act, which you have referred to. That act
had several features. Basically it provided a screening program for
high-risk children under the direction of the then Department of
Health, Education; and Welfare. It also directed HUD to eliminate
hazards of lead-based-paint poisoning in houses it owned or assisted
financially. ) ) : o
Since 1972, this Department has provided financial and technical
assistance to States and communities for establishing programs to
screen and identify children with lead toxicity and to provide the
necessary medical and environmental interventions. Childhood
lead toxicity is not equally distributed geographically, and grant
funds were provided 'to those areas of_ greatest need. Over the
years, categorical grant funds totaling approximately $90 million
 have been provided to more than 100 communities in 35 States and
theDistrict of Columbia. : ’ : s
The lead-based-paint poisoning prevention programs supported
by HHS were designed with several interlocking program elements

to insure their success. These elements were: .

The screening of high-risk children; .
%:he establishment of community education and outreach efforts;
he development and maintenance -of laboratory analytic capa-
bilities; T Lo ‘
The assurance of appropriate medical care and followup for those
found at risk of lead toxicity; and

The conduct of appropriate investigation and intervention in the:
-environment of any child. found to have, lead toxicity, to identify .
and remove the sources of high-dose lead hazard from the environ-.

ment of that child. .
. Since 1972, States and local childhood lead poisoning prevention
programs have screened more than 4 million high-risk children and

identified over 250,000 (6 percent) with lead toxicity. The programs

identified lead hazards in 165,000 dwellings and eliminated those

" hazards in 112,000. In addition, CDC initially provided the neces-

sary training and equipment to establish laboratory competence for

accurately measuring blood lead. There are now over 100 laborato- -

ries which maintain that competence through proficiency testing
programs and laboratory consultations. When the initial laboratory
test of choice was changed from analysis of blood lead to erythro-
cyte protoporphyrin, CDC transferred that technology through
grant funds and its laboratory training effarts and developed profi-
ciency testing for over 200 laboratories in approximately-1 year.
Statistics fromr the grant programs would indicate that while the
lead toxicity problem has not been solved, indeed there has been a

" marked reduction. For example, in 1973, 11.1 percent of children

screened in high-risk project grant areas were identified with lead
toxicity; whereas in 1981, only 4.1 percent of those screened were
found to have the disease. In addition, the number of children
being found with extremely high blood levels has been greatly re-
duced, and death and overt encephalopathy from this disease have

become a rarity. . ,

2
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Nutrition Exummatmn Survey (NHANES II) shows that the prob-

However, the recently completed second National Health and
lem of lead toxicity in &hildren is greater than pkeviously anticipat-

.ed. It showed that 4 perCent of the children 6 months through 5

years of age had elevated blood lead levels. Findings for"specific
groups include: Children from inner cities of large urban areas—.

.11.6 percent; childrer from smaller urban areas—3.5 percent; and

children from rural areas—2.1 percent. The blood lead levels of
black children are higher than those of white children, though in
white children from relatively afflyent families 0.7 percent—or
seven children in every thousand——were still found to have elevat-
ed blood lead levels.

As you have indicated, beginning October 1, 1981, the grant
funds for the childhood lead based-paint poisoning prevention pro-
grams were, consolidated- by the Congress into the maternal and
child health program block grant. A major purpose of the block
grants is to achieve greater flexibility for the States in their use of
Federal funds. With block grants, the‘States can tailor their spend-
ing to meet their own needs.  Public notice of the intended use of
block grant funds and public hearings are'generally required to fa-

. cilitate comments from interested local governments and persons.-

In areas such as lead-based~ pa,mt poisoning prevention, State and
local public health ofﬁmals have & knowledge, of local needs which

‘ ¢annot he matched in Washington or even Atlanta... .

The law requires; each State to submit an. annual report on its .

activities undér the MCH block grant. The Department has re-

,quested that these reports be submitted by March 1983. It is ex-

N

pected that the States will include descriptions of activities of their

lead-based-paint programs. As the Secretary testified before the

Committee on Energy and Commerce on September 20, depending

on the contents of these reports, we will decide if we have to rein-

stitute more formalized procedures for data retrieval.

In the meantime, the Health Resources and Services Adminiftra-
tion and CDC will continue to maintain a focus of Federal gxper-
tise in lead poisoning preventlon activities. Both the blo ad and
erythrocyte protoporphyrin proficiency testing programs will con-
tinue. When requested, technical assistance w1lI be provided to the
States and, through them, to local: communitieg. The CDC will con-
tinue to receive, analyze, and disseminate thése reports that are
voluntarily submitted by the States and local programs. We will
continue to encourage all child health programs to screen children
for lead toxicity and to provide the necessary medical and envix;g,n—
mental intervention.

There is a repository of expertise in nfany of the States to deal
with this problem. The laboratory network and the instrumenta-
tion for identifying lead hazards remain in place. With this contjn-
ued technical assistance and encouragement, and the block grant
funds which are now available to the States, we anticipate lead
screening efforts will continue, partlcularly among those groups
who are at hlghest risk.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my formal remarks, and I will be
happy to try to respond to questions.

[Dr. Hardy's prepared statement follows:] ~

[
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DR. GEORGE E, HARDY, JR. w2

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR/WASHINGTON

h CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL

- N \

Mr.xchairman‘and,ﬁémbers of the Subcommittee: ‘ .
e o : =4
v : ’

,I am Dr. George E. Hardy, Jr., Assistant,Diréctoz}Washington of .the Centers
for Disease Control (CDC). I am pleased to be here today Fu discuss the
important 1s§ue of chilchood lead poisoning prevéntiun, and to reviéw what
the Department of "Health and Human Servicqg (HHS) has done about Ehis
problem and what it proposes to do in the future. ' B
Lead is an important chemical element which has been used since at least
25p0 B.C., The Romans used more than 60,000 tons of lead per year for over
400 years, for, among other things, lining their aqueducts. Accurdiné te
some historians, lead puisoning was endemic in ancient.Rume.' Between 1940
and 1977, the annuél use of lead in th; United States almost doubled from
782,000 tons éu 1.5 million tons. Between 1935 and 1977, the amoun; uf lead

~ used as a gasoline additive in tﬁe United States increased sixfold grom

37,600 tons to 233,000 tons per year. Since 1977, the use of lead in .
gasoline has decreased significantly as gasoline additive regulations have
been implemented. ’ . ‘ »

Our knowledge of lead toxicity dates back at Yeast 2000 years. The problem
of lead toxicity in children.first drew attention as congenital lead

.
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poisoning in the eight;enth and nineteenth éénturies. The occurrence of
dpad‘poisoning in children Ehrough direct exposure was first reported in
ngensland,'Australia, in 1892. The source of lead in these children
remained a mystery: until i9oa when lead paint was implicated. In 1943,

Drs. Lord and Byers demonstrated £he devastating effects (1.é., poor school
performance and overE”mental retardation) of lead eoisoning oﬁ the brains of
young children. 1In fhe 1950's and 1960's, hospitals in a few large cities

such as Boston, New York, Chicago, Philadelphia, and Baltimore began

4 =

. systematically ta screen high risk children for lead pnisoning. In 1979,
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In 1970, the Surgeon General issued a statement which focused attention on

Dr. Herbert Needleméq, then with the Bosfon Children's Hospital,

demonstratgd the adverse effects of low dose lead”expdsurg. These effects

include poor academic performance and behavorial problems. il}

Thefe are many sources of lead 16 the eavironment. These include- water,
air, and food as background conéributors. The usual high dose sources are
lead in paint and lead in dust and soil. The lead in dust and soll derives
from lead in paint, lead from automobile and industrial emissions, and from
previous land use. Young children absorb about 4 times more lead per unit’
ingested than adths, and the developing brain is very sénsitive to the

effects of lead.

prevention of childhood lead poisoning. The Congress gave support to this
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effort Dy enactmént of the Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act
(P.L. 91-695) which was signed in January, 1971. The act was extended and
amended in 1973 by P.L. 93151, in 1976 by P.L. 94-317, and again in 1978,
when screening provisions were incorporated into section 316 of thé Egblic
Health sérvice Act by P.L. 95-626. A; implemented, the amended Act
basically prov;ded a screening program for high risk children under.the
direction of the Department of Health and Human Services (and the
predecessor Department of Health, Education, and Welfare); it also directed
the Department of Housiné and Urban Development (HUD) to eliminate hazards
of lead based paint poisoning in houses it owned or-assisted financially;
limited the maximum lead content allowable in residential paint to 0.06% by
welight; and prohibitéd"the application of lead b?sedcggint to cooking,

eating, and drinking utensils, and toys and furniture. .

4
[} " .

Since 1972, this Department has provided financial and technical assistance

to States and communifies for establishing programs to screen wnd* identify |

4 .
children with lead todjicity and to provide the necessary medical and
t

environmental interventions. Childhood lead toxicity is not equally
distributed geographically, and grant funds were provided to those areas of
greatest need. Over the years, gdteqgorical grant funds totaling approxiffately _
$90 million have been provided to more than lOO‘Fommunities in 35 States and

»

the District of Columbia. v
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The Lead Based Palnt Poisoning Prevention Programs supported by HHS were
N ‘designed with several interlocking program element$ to ensure their
success. These elements were: ‘* s

N

o The screening of high risk children.

o} The establishment of community education and outreach efforts. .

K - .t

o The development and maintenance of laboratory analytic Y,
capabilities.
5] The assurance of appropriate medical care and followup for tfiose

_ found at risk of lead toxicity.

o The conduct of appropriate inveétigation and intervention in the
environment of any child found to gave lead toxicity, to identify
and" remove the sources of high dose lead hazard from the

environment of that child.

. + “
R Since 1972, States and local childhood lead poisoning prevention programs
have screened more than 4 million high risk children and identified over .
250,000 (6%) with lead toxicity. The programs identified lead hazards in

, 165,000 dwellings and eliminated those hazards in 112,000. cOC initially

provided the necessary frainihg and equipment to establish laboratory

.
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competence for accurately measuring blood lead. There are nOw OVer
100 laboratories which maintain that competence through proficiency testing
prbgrams and laboratory consultations. When the initial laboratory test of
‘choice was changed from analysis of blood lead to erythrocyte protoporphyrin,
COC transferred that technology through grdht funds and its laboratory
, training éfforts and developed proficiency testing for over 200 laboratories

in approximately one year. '
COC also assisted other Federal agencies, such as the Health Services
Administration (HSA) and the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA)
within HHS, as well as other Federal Departments such as HUD and the
Department of Agriculture, to develop and implement priority leat ?Bisoniqg
prevention activities. Both HSA and HC?A actively encouraged programmatic
acFivltles within the States. HUD developed the technology to accurately

’ measure lead in paint on the walls of houses. Alfhough the problem of
pediatric lead'tox;city has not been solved, program reporéz indicate that

it has been markedly reduced. For example, in 1973, 11.1X of children

screened in high-risk project grant areas were identified with lead
toxicity; whereas in’ 1981, only 4.1% of those screened were found to have
the disease. LIn addition, the number of children being found with extremely
;

high bldod 41ead levels has been greatly reduced, and death and overt

encephalopathy from this disease have become a rarity.

e
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The recently completed second National Health and Nutrition Examination
Survey (NHANES II) shows that the problem of lead toxicity in children is
greater than previously anticipated., The NHANES II Survey is based on &

complex sampling design that represents the noninstitutionalized population

%¢é?¥ the United States aged 6 months to 74 years. It showed that 4% of the'

children 6 months through 5 years of age had blood lead levels greater than
29 micrograms per deciliter of whole blood (the level of concern). Findings
for specific groups incl;de: children from inner cities of large urban
areas--11.6%; children from smaller urban areas--3.5%; and children from
rural areas-~2.1%¥. The blood lead levels of black children are higher than
those of white children, though in white children from relatively affluent

families Q.7% were still found to have elevated blood lead levels.

Effective October 1, 1981, the grant funds for the childhood lead based
paint poisoning prevention programs were consolidated by the Congress into
the Maternal and Child Health Program block grant. Block grants constitute

one of the key reforms of this Administration. A -major purpose of the block

‘grants is to achieve greater flexibility for the States in their use of

Federal funds. With block grants, the States can tailor their spending to
meet their own needs. Public notice of the intended use of block grant
funds and public héarings are generally required to facilitate comments from
interested local governments and persons. Bringing gobernment decisions
closer to those who are being served is one of the most important principles
qf block grants. - In areas such as lead based paint poisoning prevention,

State and local public health officials have a knowledge of local needs

which cannqt be matched in Washington.
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The law requires each State to submit an,annualyreport on its activities
under the MCH block érant. The 6épartment.has reﬁuested that these repbrts N
be sbbmitteq by March of 1983, It is expected thét the States will include
descriptions of activities of their lead-based paint programs. As the .
Secretary’ testified before the Committee on Energy and CpmmerCQ on September
20, depending on the contents of these reports,.we will decide if we have to
reinstitute more fofmalized procedures for data retrieval. )
j’The Health Resources and Services Administration and CDC will continue to
maintain a focus of Federal expertise in lead poisoning prevention
activities. Both the blood lead and erythrocyte protoporphyrin proficiency
testing programs will continue. When requested, technical assistance will
be provided to: the States and, through them, to local comnunities. The CDC
will continue to receive, analyze, and disseminate those reports t@at are
voluntarily submitted by the States and local programs. We will continue to
encourage all child health programs to screen children for lead toxicity and
to provide the necessary medical and environmental intervention.
“ . . ;
There is a repository of expertise in many of the States to deal with this i’
problem. For example, Statewide programs were established in Maine,
Rhode Island, South Carolina, Illinmois, Wisconsin, Delaware, Arkansas,

Louisiana, and the District of Columbia. In many dther States, although

Statewide programs were not implemented, there is expertise in thﬁ States
and local areas to continue programs. Tﬁe laboratory network ané‘the
instrumentation for identifying lead hazards remain in place. With this
continued technical af¥ystance and encouragement, and the block grant funds
which are now available to the States, we anticipate lead screening efforts
will continue, particularly among those groups who are at highest risk.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my formal remarks. I will be happy'to respond

: to your questions at this time.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Mr. WaxmMaN. You mentioned in your statement the Secretary’s
testimony that IIHS expects to receive reports on the MCH pro-
-gram in general and on the lead program in particular. What infor-
mation has CDC or HHS requested from the States? What ques-
tions have you asked about the prevalence of lead poisoning in the
States’ lead screening program?

Dr. Harby. The only information which we have received is that
which has been voluntarily submitted. There has been no specific
request for detailed information, which as you know, has been the
philosophy for all the block grants. It is our expectation that we
will receive reports, detailed reports about lead activities when the
States report their activities, but there have been no specific re-
quests. i

Mr. WaxmaN. How are we going to know whether the States are
using Federal dollars for any worthwhile purpose under the block
grants, particularly this effort? .

Dr. Hafby. One of the requirements is that the State must pre-
pare and submit to the Secretary a report describing the intended
use of the payments the States will receive, including a description
of the population areas and localities identified as needing MCH
services—which would include the lead-based-paint prevention pro-
gram—a statement of the State’s goals and objectives for meeting
these needs, information on the types of services to be provided,
and the indiyiduals to be served and the type of data that the State .
intends to collect respecting activities conducted with such pay-
ments. That is a statutory requirement. We expect that under that
requirement we will receive data that can be reviewed.

Mr. WaxmaN. Of course, the Secretary seemed to indicate we
would have a little bit more information than that, but what you
Just indicated, was that done this year? Are these statements ever
rejected? v .

Dr. Harpy. In the first year of block grant awards, because of the
timeframe in which the blocks were enacted, the provisions for
public comment and the provisions for State legislative hearings
were not in fact required. There was no way the block grant funds
could have been parceled out in timely fashion if that requirement
had been instituted. It will be a requirement of all future years.

Mr. Waxman. You say that CDC will continue to maintain a
focus on lead poisoning. How much money didg'gu request in 1983,
and how much was spent in 19812-"

Dr. Harpy. The in-house £DC lead program consisted of 10 -
people, and. a budget of approximately $500,000 in fiscal year 1982.
There was not a reqiest for the continuation of those individuals
and that money for fiscal year 1983. ) R

Mr. WaxMmaN. At all?

Dr. Harpy. That is correct. The House Appropriations Commit-
tee did in-fact put those positions and moneys back 1n the bill that
was adopted yesterday by the House. :

Mr. Waxman. Do you think that CDC would have a difficult time
maintaining a Federal focus without any employees dealing with
the subject matter? .

Dr. Harpy. These employees are people who will be moved to
other program responsibilities within the Center for Environmen-
tal Health. There'is no question of their interest in the lead pro-




gram, and every effort would be made by these people who have
the competence to respond to requests for assistance to do so. They
would be responsible for other primary program activities as well.

Mr. WAXMAN. You say that you will provide technical assistance
to the States. How much money did the administration request for
technical assistance activities regarding lead for 1983, and how '
much was spent for 19817 : -

Dr. Harpy. There was no specific request for technical assistance
activities in 1983. Under each of the block grants there is the capa-
bility to provide technical response, limited technical response to
requests from States, and that would have been carried out in
fiscal year 1981 and 1982 by the individuals we just spoke of, and
in fiscal year 1983 by whatever capability they could offer through
the Center for Environmental Health. '

Mr. WaxMAN. | am curious to know how administratively you
take people out of an area In which they are involved because you
do not have money for them. You claim they. will be working some-
where else at CDC, but they will still-be working on lead paint?

Dr. Harpy. Not primarily. They will be working within the
Center for Environmental Health, and obviously lead-based paint is
an _environmental problem. They would be filling position vacan-
cies which have occurred over. the year through attrition in the
Center so the particular “lead” positions would not exist. Their
principal responsibilities would be the broad range of environmen-
tal health, but as I indicated, they would tertainly attempt to re-
spond to requests in the lead-based-paint area. ’ to

Mr. Waxman. Dr. ‘Hardy, we appreciate your testimony, and the
new position you have in relationship to us at athearing such as
this. We are going to break and Mr. Johnson, we will return as
soon as we have the opportunity to vote and get right back here.

[Brief recess.|

Mr. Waxman. Our next witness is Mr. Kirk Johnson, assistant
director of the National Coalition for Lead Control. We are pleased
to have you with us today. Your prepared statement and the coali-
tion's report on this matter will be made a part of the record, and I
ask that you summarize your statement for the subcommittee.

STATEMENT OF KIRK A. JOHNSON, M.S., ASSISTANT DIRECTOR,
NATIONAL COALITION FOR LEAD CONTROL, CENTER FOR SCI-
EN(‘E IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST o

.

Mr. JounsoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would be glad to. We
represent a collection of 30 national and local organizations that
are dedicated to eliminating lead hazards, including the National
Urban League, National Education Association, Friends' of the
Earth, and Children’s Foundation. The coalition is coordinated by
the Center for Science in the Public Interest, a non-profit congumer
advocacy group have here in Washington.

Last year Health and Human Services Secretary ‘Schweiker testi-
fied before this-subcommittee about block grants and in doing sb

- promised that block grants would streamline the delivery of lead-
screening dollars to local health programs to-the extent that 25
percent could be safely pared off the top of Federal funding with no
loss in services. After the first year of the block grant, our coalition




29

v

decided to test this theory. We spoke with health officials in the 10

" cities with the most severe lead problems to survey the extent to

which the switch to block grants had hurt their ability to identify
and provide medical care for children with high blood lead levels.

With your consent, Mr. Chairman, I ask that our report be entered-

into the record.

Mr. Waxman. Without ObjE‘Cthn [See ..34]

Mr. Jounson.” We have summarized our findings on the chart
that I have before me now. On this chart are flgures for the aver-

age operating budgets of the local lead screening programs in the

.cities that we surveyed and the average number of children
screened for lead poisoning for 3 years: fiscal year 1981, the last’

categorical.year; fiscal year 1982, the first year of the block grant;
and projections for fiscal year 1983 the current year.

The effect of the block grant has been severe. During the first
year of the block grant, average operating budgets for screening
programs have declined 10. percent. With fewer operating dollars

“for these programs, staff reductions haye been rife. Indeed, in the
.cities we surveyed, staff cuts -of 20 to 504 percent were not uncom-

mon, and with fewer people'to run the programs, fewer staff people
to go to high-lead neighborhoods, canvass for high-lead children
and test them, you can imagine the ultimate brunt of these reduc-
tions has been felt by the children.

In the first year of the block grant the average number of chil-
dren screened dropped from 14,500 children to 13,000. That again is
a drop of 10 percent. The health officials that we have spoken with

in these eities claim that the reason for these reductions in operat- ) .

ing budgets and children screened is a 25-percent cutback because
of the switch from categorical to block grants.

Indeed, the situation for the next fiscal year does not loock much
better. Thesehealth officials are. projecting that by the end of this
fiscal year, operating budgets for screening programs will have
fallen® by 35 percent, and the number of children screened for lead
poisoning will fall by 50 percent. In other words, by the end of this
fiscal year, half the children who would have received“screening
under the old categorical funding system will not receive screening

- because of the block grant. We do not have to wait another year to

know that the block grant approach has failed lead screening pro-
grams. In our opinion if this subcommittee and Congress act now,
they can prevent the severe second-year budget cutbacks and
screening cutbacks that these health officials are forecasting.

>

Our coalition_has five recommendations: First, we ask that Con-.

gress rernove Iéad-based poisoning prevention programs from the

maternal and child health block grant and reestablish their cate- .

gorical status. This is the only way that Congress can insure that
‘the Federal health dollars that you appropriate reach the high-lead
youngsters for whom they aredntended.

The childhood lead poisoning -is primarily, although not exclu- ‘

sively, an urban problem. Yet some cities with the most severe lead
problems are located in States whose rural-dorminated leglslatures

' are, less sensitive to urban concerns. We believe that even in States

that are well aftuned to the importance of lead contrdl, shrinking

State budgets and pressure to reduce, spendlng may induce deci-.

smnmakers to funnel these precious health dollars elsewhere.

33
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Second, Congress should sharply increase the budget for lead-
screening programs above and beyond the 25-percent cutback that
has been imposed by the Reagan administration. Figures show that-
lead screening is both cost-effective and efficient. Yet no matter
how good the program, its ultimate impact has been limited By ap-
propriations that have been quite modest. You can,see this by com-
'paring the rimber of children who receive care for lead screening
with the numbers who need it. Despite the efficiency of the pro-
gram and despite its concentration on screening kids from high-
risk urban neighborhoods, only about 3 percent of the high-lead
children in the Nation can be foiind and cared for each year by the
Federal screening effort. Clearly, more generous appropriations are
in order. '

Third, we recommend that the mandate for the lead screening
programs in the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act be ex-
panded from focusing on the hazards of lead-based paint to encom-
pass' other sources of lead. In' the years since the act was passed,
health officials have been increasingly aware that, although old-
lead-based paint in inner-city buildings remains the basic source of
lead for a sizable number of youngsters, the diet, soil, water supply,
and air together comprise the major source for others. While expo-

_sure to these sources is clearly not always avoidable, informed par-
ents can take steps to limit their children’s exposure to lead from
canned foods, soil, dust on building surfaces, newspaper and maga-
zine inks, toys, and other contaminated materials. These avoidable |
sources can contribute a significant fraction of many individuals’
daily lead intake. We believe that a broader mandate in the act

. “would encourage local lead-screening programs to incorporate in-
formation on non-paint sources in their educational work. Some
programs h&ve already done this. Such a mandate would also avoid
overemphasis on lead-paint removal. _ 8

Fourth, Congress should reinstate the Centers for Disease' Cop-
trol as the agency responsible for administering the Nation’s lead
screening effort. CDC’s experience and its technical expertise are
shared by no other Federal body. Contrary to administration
claims that we heard this morning, many local officials rely heav-
ily on CDC’s training programs, technical advice, and help with
laboratory problems. And they consider CDC’s recordkeeping and
reporting requirements a valuable way -for them to judge their own
program’s progress and to keep track of national trends.- .

Finally, Congress should allow States to establish programs of
consultation and support services to help local health departments
start and maintain lead-screening programs. Before 1981 State gov-
ernments were generally prevented from dispersing Federal grant
dollars by a provision in the act. I believe it was the first section of
the act. This provision had mixed effects, Certainly direct funding
was more efficient than channeling Federal health dollars from
CDC through States to local health departments. But by denying
States control over the purse strings for local screening efforts,
direct funding also made these State governments powerless to
begin léad-screening programs in communities that needéd them or
to coordinate existing programs., We believe that States with a

S genuine interest in prompting lead control should be allowed to
> form a partnerghip with CDC and local health departments. We:

. PO
Q . .
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recommend that the option of forming these statewide programs of
consultation and support be extended to each State, and that CDC
be instructed to review and approve or deny each State's apphca-
tion for establishing such a system.

In sum, we believe the block grant approach has done much
more harm-than good, and urge the Congress to restore lead-
screening programs to their previous good health by granting the
programs categorical status by increasing funding, by giving the
programs a mandate to address nonpaint sources of lead, by rein-
stating CD(’s authority over the program, and by allowing States a
greater role in planning .and coordinating local lead-screening ef-
forts. I would be happy to answer any questions that you have.

[Testimony resumes on p. 34| .

[Mr. Johnson's prepared statement and report follow:] 7
\\'\
. , N
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The National Coalition for Lead Cont_rol

Statement of Kirk A. Johnson, M.S.
Assistant Director, National Coalition for Lead Control
Center’ for Sclence in the Public Interest
before the
Subcommittee on Health and the Environment
U.S. House of Representatives
December 2, 1982

Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, my name is Kirk Johnson.
I am assistant director of the National Coalition for Lead Control, a collec-
tion of thirty national and local health, environmental, minority, urban and
children's advocacy organizations that are dedicated to eliminating lead
hazards. The Coalition includes such groups as the National Education
Association, Friends of, the Earth, the National Urban League, Children's
Foundation, and the National Medical Association, and is co~ordinated by the
Center for Science in the Public Interest,

The Coalition was formed because of warning signs that this nation may
soon witness a marked rise in the number of children suffecing from lead~related
health problems, without the protection of vital programs to deal with this
hazard.  Before 1981, the federal government had made commendable progress in
reducing lead emissions into the environment and in diagnoding und treating
children with excessive lead exposures. But the ascendance of the Reagan
Administration brought a wholesale attack on the regulations and programs that
protect Americans from lead.

e

~

Shortly after Mr. Reagau took office, the White House directed the Eavi-
ronmental Protection Agency to propose a relaxation of controls over lead
levels in leaded gasoline, regulations that have been credited with much of a
35% decline in Americans' blood lead levels between 1976 and 1989.1 The Ocecu-
pational Safety and Health Administration subseguently announced it was
'ra-evaluating’ the-"feasibility" of a Carter Adhinistration proposal to reduce
worker exposure to airborne lead by 75%.2 We recently learned that OSHA is
considering replacing its controls on lead levels in workplace air in favor
of measures that would take effect only after workers' blood levels rose-—

- a proposal }eminiscen: of canaries being sacrificed as an indicator of toxic
gas build-up in mines. The Food and Drug Administration has thus faf delayed
implementation of any regulations that would restrict lead levels in the food
supply, despite the fact that the average consumer receives ~ast of his or
her daily lead intake from the diet,3 and despite FDA and industry studies
documenting the potential haZard from lead in food.

L .
Compounding the risk created by regulatory changes that will increase
everyone's exposure to lead, the Administration has also meddled with the pro-
grams that help care for individuals after tireir lead burdens become excessive.

Y

Cenfer for Science in the Public Interest 2 1755 S St., NW » Washingten, D.C. 20009
‘ Bambi Batts Young, Ph.D., Director * - »
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By folding money for the natiorn'%§ lead-based paint poisoning prevention (lead
screening) programs into the Mat§\nal and Child Health block grant, and reduc-
ing overall funds for the block by one-quarter, the Reaggn budget is gradually
crippling the federal goverpment's only mechanism for systematically iden:ifg—
ing and providing medical care for high~legpd youngsters. In a recent survey

of the ten cities with the most severe le:S problems, the National Coalition for
Lead Control found that during the first year under the block grant (FY -1982),
the 25% reduc:ion in funds was ,translated to an avirage 10Z cut in the operating
budgets of lead screening programs. With fewer operating dollars, staf: reduc-
tions ,of 30~50% were rife. : :

0f course, the ifipact of the budget and staff cuts was ultimately borne
by the children. Ten percent fewer childten were screened for lead poisoning
in the first year of the block grant compared to the last year of categgrical
funding. This represents over 10,000 children in the ten surveyed cities
alone who did not receive adequate medical cire.

. For the second year under the block grant (FY 1983), most health officials

are predicting even more severe reductions in screening and treatment. This 1s

ERIC

bacause. most states initially exercised a special first-year option to receive
their rediiced federal block funds in the same proportion as under categorical
graants. Thus, a lead screening program that had received 6% of all dollars

given to maternal and child health activities through categorical grants con-~
tinued to receive 6% of the reduced block grant dollars. But during FY 1983, all
health programs in the Maternal and Child Health block will compete with each
other for the shrunken block grant pool. The. political impotence of the low~
income children and families who form the principal constituency for lead screen-—
ing has prompted health officials in the cities we surveyed to forecast a 357
reduction in ‘operating budgets, and a 50% reduction in children screened, com~
pared to the last categorical year. Mr. Chairman, I ask that the Coalition's
report on these trends he entered into the record.

These grim statistics fly in the face of the Administration's, confiden
promises about how the block grant would streamline the delivery of health<®ollars
without cutting back services. On March 26, 1981, Health and Human Services
Secretary Richard Schweiker testified before this subcommittee that block grants
would improve the efficlency of lead screening and other programs by reducing
administrative costs to such an _gxtent that a 25% cut in total spending for the
block could be absorbed with no loss in services. 6 Evidently, the Administration
chose to ignore analyses by the rongressional Budget Office’ and the General
Accounting Office8 showing that administrative costs of a typical categorical °
program consume only about 4-5% of the total grant that the cost of administer-
ing the typical block grant is about the same ‘as categorical grants; and that
block grant programs can actually have higher administra:ive costs than categori-
cal programs. Indeed, when pressed to justify that' the 25% cut would not gnde -
ger services,’ Secretary Schweilker could produce only a "personal opinion" from
the director of Misgouri's Division of Health that his office could do a better
job without the ope-quarter of his staff that implemented the federal categori-
cal grants. We find it ironic that because of the block grant, 38 of 75 staff
members were fired from the St. Louils lead screening program last year, and
screenings fell from 14,000 to barely 10,000.

‘ We do not have to walt another year to know that the block grant approach
has falled for lead screening programs. If Congress acts now, it can prevent

PAruntext provided by exic il
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‘ the severe second -vear budpet and screening cutbacks that are being forecasg.

Here are the National Cealition tor Lead Control’s recommendations:

First, we ask that Congress remove lead-based poisohing prevention pro-
grams from the Maternal and Child Health block grant and re-establish their
sategorical status. Only by restoring categorical allecation can Congress . -
{nsure that federal health dollars reach the high-lead youngsters for whom they
1re intended. Childhobd lead poisoning 1is primarily, though not exclusively,
au urban problem. Yet some cities with the most severe lead problems are in
states whose rural-dominated legislatures are less sensitive to urban concerns.
Evén in states that are attuned to the importance of lead control, shrinking -
state budgets and pressure to reduce spending may induce decision makers to
funnel healch dollars elsewhere. .

Second, ‘Congress should sharply increase the budget for lead screening .
programs, and should do so above and beyond the 25% reduction imposed by ‘the
Reagan Administration. The federal lead screening effort is both cost-effective#
and efficient**, Yet no matter how good the program, its ultimate impact has
been limited by modest federal appropriations. Since 1972, Congress has appro- '
priated less than half the funds it has authorized for lead screening. The
need for additional dellars can be shown by examining how many of the children
who need sereering actually receive it. Over a half million young children
nativnwide presently have too much lead in their bodies. Despite the effi-
cienev of the lead screenins program and 1its concentration on screening children o
from high-risk urban neighborhoods, only about 3% of the high~lead children
{n the nation can be found and cared for.each year with federal screening dol-
lars. 11513 More generous funding is clearly in order..

Third, we recommend that the mandate for the .lead screening programs pro-
vided by the Lead-Based Paint Polsoning Prevention Act, which focuses on the
hazardg of lead-based paint, be expanded to encompags other sources of lead.

* For example, in 1978, the federal budget for all lead screening- programs,
was $8.5 million. For the same year, the socilal costs of excessive childhood 4 T
lead exposure, in terms of medical care and special ‘education for all high-lead
children, and (later) lost adult wages, were conservatively estimated to be - N\
$1 billion.? Of the approximately 670,000 youngsters nationwide who in 1978
had too much lead in their bodies,10 the federa) lead screening programs pro-
vided screening and treatment for about 34,10, so the social cost of lead
exposure for the children under the care of screening programs can be estimated
at '3% of Sl billion, or $30 million. Thus, in purely economic terms, lead >
screeninyg makes sense; the cost of screening isNower than the cost” of not
screening by a factor of about 3~to-1. It is 'm sible, of course, to quantify
the human suffering prevented by lead screening PrioRN@ms.
B
ki From 1972 to 1980, the federal lead screening program identified and pro-
vided medjcal care for over 170,000 high-lead youngs:cr512 at a total cost of
875 millfon.l! Thus, early intervention by lead screening centers has meant ~
that thousands of voungsterd have been protected against potentially perganent
mental deficits and behavioral problems at an average cost per high-lead child
of only $440. : ' S 'Y

. . .
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In the vears since the Act was passed, health officials have grown more and

more aware that, although old “lead-based paint in irner-city buildings remains
the principal sonurce of lead for a Sizable number of youngsters, the diet, .
soil, water supply, and air together comprise the major source for others.

While exposure to these sources is cledrly not always avoidable, informed pqrencs
can take steps to limit their children's exposure to lead from canned foods,
soil, dust on building surfaces, newspaper and magazine inks, toys, and other
contaninated materials. These avnidable sources can contribute a significant
fraction of many individuals' daily lead fntake.3 A broader mandate in the Act
would encourage local lead screening programs to incorporate information on
not~paint sources in their educational wnrk (some programs have already done

s0). and would avoid overemphasis on leaded paint removal,lé . ¢

Fourth, Congress should reinstate the Centers for Disease Control as the
JVenuy responsible for administering the nation's lead screening effort.
¢DC'y experdi ncg and technical expertise are shared by no other federal body,
focluding HHB's Division of Maternal and Child Health, which currently adminis-
ters the Maternal and Child Health block grant. Many local officials rely
heavily con ¢DC's training programs, technical advice, and assistance with labora-
tary problems, and consider CD(’s reporting and.recordkeeping requirements valu- »
dble tools to gauge the probrehs of their own prggrams and to track national
trends., The Adwinistration's distanciug of CDC from local lead 5creen1ng
activities represents a triumph of political expedience’ over common seuse, and"
should be rectitied.’

Finally, Congress should allow states to establish Jprograms of consulta-
tion and support services to help local health d;partmentq start and maintain
lead screcning programs. Before 1981, a provision of the Lead-Based Paint
Pofsoning Frevention Act prevented state governments from taking charge of the
dibburaumen: ol federal. grant dollars unless a state ordinarily provided direct
sefvices to local communities or where local health departments were prohibited
bv law from receiving federal funds directly. This provision had mixed effects.
Direct funding was more efficient than channeling federal dollars from CDC
through state governments to localiti{es; it meant no grant dollars were used
to administer the categorical program at the state level., But by denying states
eontrol over the purse-strings for lead screening, direct funding alsn made
state governments powerless to begin lead screening programs in new communities
ar to coordinate and otherwise serve existing prdgrams. We believe states
that have a genulne interestwoin promoting lead control should be allowed to
form a par tnership with CDC and local health departments. We recommend that
the Uption ~f forming state-wide programs of consultation and suppnrt be
extended to each state, and that CDC be instructed to review, and to approve
ar deny, each state's application for establishing such a iystem. v

In sum, we belivve the block grant approach has done.much mare harm than
good, and urge the Congress to restore lead screening programs to their previous
good health by granting the program categorical status; by increasing funding; W
by giving the programs a mandate to address non-paint sources of lead; by
reinstating CDC's authorlty nver the program; and by allowing states a greater
rele in pgdnn[ugthd coordinatify local lead screenring programs,

1 would be happy to answer any quescloqs ynu may have.

D
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in Low-Level Lead Exposure: The Clinical Implications of Current Research,
#., Needleman, ed., Raven Press, 1980.
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14. The Coalition has learned of one lead screening program that has removed leaded
paint from homes regardless of whether a high-lead child resides within, while
failing to look for children whose high lead levels are caused by non-lead "
scources. In another state, when investigators from a local screening pro-
gram are disparched to a high-lead child's home to locate the source(s) of
lead, they look first for leaded paint. If it is found,®the paint is removed
and the investigation stops. No other sources are investigzated, even though
canned foods, magazines, toys, and other materials may be contributing to the
child's unsafe lead levels.
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Executive Summary

In mid-1981, Congress, at the urgihg of the Reagan Admin-
. istration, folded funds for childhood lead screening programs
into the Maternal and Child Health block grant and reduced funds

for the block by 25%. Block grant proponents arqued that this
new funding mechanism would imprave efficiency and result in no

loss of health services. However, a year-end review shows that - -
the block grant significantly impaired the ability of key lead
. ’ . N N
screefiing programs to 1dentify and care for children with danger- -

ously elevated lead levels. Under the first year of the block
grart, the budgets of these programs were reduced an average of

10%; the number of children screened fom lead poisoning also fell

by 10%. Health officials forecast even more drastic budget cuts
(-35%) for the second year of the block grant, with a subsequent
reduction in children screened (-55%) and treated for lead problems.

A Persistent Public Héalth Problem ‘ °

For conturles, man has recognized that lead can wreak havoc
upon the fine workings ot the human body. Historians have linked
the tall of the Koman Empire to consumption of wine made 1n
leaden v sels; sjamin Franklin wrote a celebrated letter on s e
tead, lamentang %}p repeated poirsonings that were taking place

- in hus i3y desprte lead's reputation as a toxin. :

1. medern, times, Americans have come to associate lead:poison-
1y owi irban decay.  Many of us can remember pictures of sick
and dy1ag ghetto chaldren in the carly 19708, victims of leaded .
paint chips that flaked off tenement wells. (Children age partic-
alarly wulnerable to lead, both because thuyidbsorb more of the

'I
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metal than 4&."n, and becsise therr young bodies are still
developing,

Today, years after .health siticials began to eorrect manf
legded-paint hazards in old buildings, most Americans assume lead
is no longer a problem, But it 1s. A recent survey by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Servigces (HHS) revealed that 4%y of
all youny children nationwide--nver 600,000 youngsters--are con-
taminated with too much lead,fl} This means-+that lead affects
mure ghildren than measles, mamps, srubella, and every major child-
huod 2i1gease combined. (2)

The HHS survey also revealed that lead hits some jroups
Jisproportionately hard, Dangeirous lead Jevels were found amonyg
11% of all pour children, 123 of black children, and a full 184
of inner-city black children. (3} Scientists suspect these statis-
t1cs may reflect exposure to’ greater amounts of ‘lead (as from
breathiny city a.r full of leaded auto exhaust) and poorer
nutrition (a good diet helps the body counteract lead).

Por mose ghildren, these lead levels are not life-threatening.
Nevertheless, oven low-level contamination can place a child at
risk for a Etaqqeran array of subtle ledfninq problems and
behavioral disorders. 1In a g979'study at Harvard Medical School,
schoolchildren with higher lead levels scored lower on IQ tests,
and were consistently rated by their teachers as more distractible,
less able to follow simple 1nstructions, mere easily frustrated,
and overall poorer performers than their classmates with less lead.
(4}  This landmark study was later confirmed by researchers in
Britain ani germany. {5} .

.

The ht jher lead levels “found in these“children correspond
approxsymately to the levels discovered, throufh the HHS survey,
to be contaminating *hundreds of thousands of ghilflren nationwide.
Thus, without adequate medical care, a substaghtial proportion of
the next jeneration riski Jrowing up bprdenu. with a set of
subtle, but permanent, mental handicaps,

Lead Scréening Prdgi'ams in’ Brief =

Fortunately, a mechanism does oxist for correcting lead
problems in children: lead Screeniny '‘progyrams. Since .1971,
over fi1ft}y federally funded, locally operated lead screening+
programs have tested millions of children for dangerous lead
levels. Childred found through a blood test to have too much
lead are detoxified through drugy treatmert at a hospital.

In addition, health investigato¥s are digpatched tp the child-
ren's homes to helwn remedy any household’sources of lead

(for example, begling lead naint on walls) and to educate parents
on how their children can best be protected from further -
exposure,’ *

€
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Lead screening 14 remarkably vost~effective. The programs
cost the federai yovernment about $11 million annually. Yet the
cost of lead exposure, in terms of special education and medical
care for lead-damaged children, plus iost adult wages: has been
estimated at $1 billion per year.(6) An ouncé of prevention is
truly worth a pound of cure.

Categorical Grants Become Block Granis

Cities have historically received funding for lead screen-
ing. through federal categorical grintg earmarked specifically
for these programs. But in the summer~of 1981, Congress, at the
urging Of the Reagan Administration, folded lead screening with
a number of other preventive health programs* into a large N
Maternal and Child Health block grant. .

This action made two profound changes in how lead screening
programs were funded. For the first time in history, states were
qiven the aythority to decide how much money-~if any--would go
to the various programs in the block grant, a move designed to
ingrease each state's autonomy” over its own activities, To ease
the transition to the block grant, states were allowed a first-
year option of receiving funds for the-programs in the block
grant in the same proportion as under the previous categorical

‘grant. Thus a health program receiving 12% of a state's health

funds under the old categorical grant could still receive 123%
of the new block grant money. .

in addition, whether or not states chose to exercise their
option to presarve relative funding levels, overall funding for
the block grant was reduceiyyy approximately .25%. This reflected
the view thag rreturning co »rol to the States would allow federal
overhead costs to be dedicted from the grants with no loss in
services.

Measuring the Impact of Block Grants

Architects of the block grant reasoned that the new
funding mechanism would allow each State to direct its share
of federal dollars to the programs it deemed most important,
and that reducing total funding by one-guarter would not affect

R * Maternal and Child Research, Services, and Training:
Sudden Infant Death Syndrome Information and Counselihg;
Hemophelia Diagnostic and Treatment Centers; Genetic Disease
Testing and Counseling Services: Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention
Services; and Disabled Children Programs.

.
.
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the delivery of scrvices. We tested this theory by examining
the impact of the Maternal and child Health block grant on 10
of the nation's 52 major lead screening programs one year after
after the transition. TheSe programs were selected because the
cities in which they operate have the most severe lead problems
of any in the United States: {7) -

P
o
3
t

L City Positive Screens*

New Jersey (other local programs) 23.7y-
Newark, N.J. 14.1%
St. Louis, Mo. 11.8%
Jersey. City, N.J. 11.3%
Philadelphia, Pa. 10.8%
Atlantic City, N.J. .6%
Paterson, N.J. : . 9%
Monroe County (Rochester), N.Y. .6%
Cleveland, Ohio - . 5%
Chicago, 1I111. . 3%

L]
-
owm\lmulf»uwr—-

—_—

* The positive screen rate is the percentage of children
Screened who are found to need medical care for teoo much
lead.  rthe national median positive rate is 2.3%1. (8)

Lead screening programs in two areas~-~Atlantic City, N.J.
and "other local programs” in New Jersey--were excluded from
the analysis because their funds are provided exclusively by
local Sources. y; To measure the effects of the switch to the block
grant for the remaining eight programs, we collected statistics
on total funding levels; numbers of gréldren screened for lead
poisOning; staff si%e; and overall a lity to provide follow-up
care. Information from the'last year in which screening was
supported by categorical grants (fiscal year 1981) .was compared
to figures from the first year under block grants (FY 1982)
and projections for the following year '(RY 1983). .

Results

Although the block grant has been in place for a full year,
for many states it is still too early to gauge the full impact on
lead screening programs: virtually eveéry state exercised its
special first-year option to receive reduced federal funds in
the same proportion as in previous years. A truer test of the
political popularity of lead ‘screening will come during the second
year of the block grant, when all seven programs in the Maternal
and Child Health block will compete for reduced federal dollars.

!




. 42

Our analysis did geveal, however, that the 25% cut in
federal funds alone has sSubstantially reduced the ability of
.crucial lead screening programs to provide adequate services.
Contrary to the predictions of block grant proponents, the federal
funding cut has been reflected in shrunken budgets for local lead
- screenlinyg programs, resulting in subsequent reductions in staff,
screenings, and follow-up care.

Cutbacks 1n budgets for lead screa2ning programs

During the first-year of the block grant, all lead
screening programs surveyed had federal budget‘cuts offset to
some degree by increased state or local funds. Nevertheless, )
program budgets for the first year under the block grant (FY 1982}
averaged 10% lower than under the last Year of the categorical
grant (FY 1981). Programs in 5 of the 8 cities suffered major
budget reductions. Budgets for the second year of the block
grant {FY 1983) have been projected to be reduced even more~—
an' average of 35% lower than previous categorical levels.

See Table 1.
\%, TABLE 1

FUNDING LEVELS FOR
LEAD SCREENING PROGRAMS

FY 1981 FY 1982 Percent FY 1983 Percent
v Categorical Block Change Block Grant Change
Grant Grant from FY 81  (Estimated) from FY 81
Newark, N.J. $ 356,238 ) § 273,402 =23% § 190, 000 -47%
]
st. Louls, Ma. 1,100,000 905,000 -17% 800,000 -27%
Jersay City, N.J.| 143,127 120,000 -162 75,000 -472
i?éGPhiladelphia. Pa. 515,000 515,000. 0x (unavailable) -
S - Reduced
Paterson, N.J. 161,000 122,090* -24% funds expected At least 24%
Monroe Co., N.Y. 244,997 251,591 +12% (unavailable) |~ -
Cleveland, Oh. 302,000 " 170,000 -16% 109,000 ~46%
Chicago, [ll. 425,000 425,000 474 331,000 -22%
b
Average: -10x 35X

" * Estimated.

All figures reflect total budget dollars (federal, state, and local combined) .
New Jersey and New York figures are for calendar years.

O
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These budget cuts have also greatly diminished the ability
of programs to identify children who have lead problers. In the
8 cities surveyed, the number of children screened for lead
poisoning declined an average of 10% from FY 1981 to FY 1982.
This represents over 10,000 youngsters who have been denied
screening under the block grant. The majority of health
officials forecast even more severe reductions in screening for
FY 1983. According to these projections, over 50% of the
children who would have been screened for lead under categorical
funding will not receive these services in FY 1983. See Table 2.

TABLE 2

CH1LDREN SCREENED
FOR LEAD POISONING

FY 1981 "FY 1982 Percent FY 1983 Percent
Categorical | Block Grant Change Block Gran. Change
Grant (Estimated) from FY 81 (Estimated)

Newark, N.J. 8,423 8,000 -5% . 300

St. loutis, Mo. 14,000 10,000 -28% 5,000

Jersey City, N.J. 3,922 4,000 +2% 1,000

less than
Philadelphia, Pa. 21,008 22,000 “+5%
eipnia, : 25,000

Paterson, N.J. 4,298 3,000 -30% 2,500

Monroe-Co., N.Y. 5, 600% 5,600 ¢unavailable)

Cleveland, Oh. 14,000 12,700 . 11,300

Chicago, I11. 45,000 40,000 30,000

Average:

* Estimated.

New Jersey and New York flgures are for calendar yeats.

Lead screening programs havé’usually been able to screen
only a fraction of the children who risk developing lead problems.
Upwards of 250,000 children in the 8 cities surveyed are young
enough to fit this high-risk classification. Even under the
categorical grant, only about 116,000 of these children were
being screened for lead poisoning; the block grant has made
the goal of screening every child who needs it even more elusive.
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Cutbacks in tollow-up care and staffing

The budget cuts have inevitably affected the care of
children identified as having lead problems. The result: a
reduction in follow-up services, including curtailment of medical
care and visits to children's homes for parental education and
reduction of lead hazards. -A detailed city-by-city breakdown
of changes in local funding, screening, follow-up, and staffing
is given in the appendices.

Conclusion

The ability of health officials-in key American cities
to identify and care for children with dangerously elevated
~ lead levels has been substantially reduced because of the
transfer of funds for lead-screening programs from a categorical
grant to the Maternal and Child Health block grant. 1In the
first year of the block.grant (FY 1982), over 10,000 children
who would have been screened for lead poisoning under the
categorical grant did not receive this care. According to
‘health officials, this reductign in services is directly
attributable to a 25% funding cut that accompanied the switch
to the block grant. ,
.In future years, the detrimental effects of the block grant
are likely to be even greater. During the first year of the
block grant, most states accepted reduced federal funding for
health programs in the same proportions as in previous years;
lead screening funds were thus reduced but still earmarked for
lead screening programs. Beginning with the second year of the
block grant, all states will receive these reduced federal funds
in block form, and State officials will be charged with deciding
how much money from the grant will be allocated to lead screening.’
Thousands more children stand to lose the Protection of this
vital program if state governments fail to recognize the existencs
of lead as a pre-eminent' public health problem and to plan
aggressively for its control.
£
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Ibid. .

Appendix

The pages that follow give a detailed city-by-city breakdown
of the effects of block,grant funding on eight of the nation's
most important lead screening programs. (Programs in two of the
ten geographic areas studied receive exclusively local funding;
these pr ams do not appear in the appendix.)
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Newark, N.J. ,
. RANK AMONG 10 WORST -
U.S. CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 2nd
EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM

400,000 ] 8,000
TOTAL .. CHILDREN
DOLLARS 300,000 6,000 SCREENED

§ 4
200,000 4,000
100,000 i 2,000
1981 1982 . 1983 ' )
calendar
Total number of children who neec screening: 40,000*
(* escimated )
. L]
1981 4 1982 . 1983 .
< B
’ §356,238 | § 97,402 leftover categor. $190,000*
. FUNDING categorical 12 grant (4% months' MCH block grant
grant worth) (Approx. $290,000 needed
. 176,000 MCH block grant to operate program at cur~
_— rent levels.)
$273,402 TOTAL
EOEE
CHILDREN 4 : . 300%
SCREENED 8,423 8,000 .
. _EFFECTS OF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CUTS:

1982: *e 5 of 17 staff members fired (2-(out of 4) health aides, 1 (out of 2) public
health nurse, 1 environmental investigator, assistant director). Subsequent
reduction in ability to provide health care.

- 1983%: o Doctor's office hours reduced or eliminated.

e Follow-up of hospitalized children only. No follow-up of cases with milder,

but serious, lead problems to lnsuge that lead levels remain in the safe range.
. Reduced parental education.

o Co-ordination of screening by area hospitals (currently 2/3 of total screens)
to continue, but in-house s:creening (8,000 per year) reduced to several
hundred. :

<
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) St. Louis, Mo. -

" RANK AMONG 10 WORST .
U.Ss CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: ' 3rd

EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM

TOTAL #}15,000
DOLLARS " 1.] i CHILDREN
(millions) i SCREENED

10,000 © 4

- 5,000

FY81 FY82

Total anumber of childrex'l who need screening: 33,000%

{* estimaced)

FYs1 Fra2 ' FY83

$1.1 million §400,000 City of St. Louis $750,000 to
catsgorical, 360,000 Community Dev. $850,000*
FUNDING grant block grant (HUD) | (Depends on whether
g 100,000 leftover cat, Br. | City of St. Louis makes
45,000 MCH block gr. up $100,000 in lost
—_— leftover categ. grant)
$905,000 TOTAL

CHILDREN
YCREENED 14,000 10,000%* , 5,000%

EFFECTS OF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CyTS:

FY 1982: e 1 (out of 2) mobile lead screening crews fired. Resulc: 4,000 fewer
children screened. )

® Total staff cut by 50X (38 of 75 ;;erlons fired). Many fewer high-lead
children monitored and treated for lead problems.

*
FY 1983: e Addictional firing of 4 to 13 staff members.

>
- ® Further drastic reduction in children screened {5,000 fewer scréens).

ERI
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RANK AMONG 10 WORST

Jersey City, N.J.
U.S. CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 4th

e N

EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM

$
.150,000 -
“TOTAL » 5.000 cry pren
DOLLARS SCREENED
$ 100,000 - R 3000 "
4 50,000 - * 4 1,000
FY8l FY82 FY83
Total number of children who need screening:'Z0.000* .
(* estimated)
FYsl FY82 . Fy83
FUNDING §143,127 $21,000 energy grant
(POLLARS & SOURCE) |categorical+ 20,000 leftover cate-
grant gorical grant $75,000%
// 79,000 MCH block grant
. / §120,000 TOTAL
CHILDREN
* SCREENED FOR 3,922 4,000% 1,000%
LEAD POISONING

EFFECTS OF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CUTS: .

FY 1982: a 2 (out of 8) staff members fired. Reduced overall ability to provide
u adequate health care.
FY 1983: a 75% reduction in number of children screened.

a Poasibility of additional staff reductiona.

{
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Philadelphia, Pa.

RANK AMONG 10 WORST
U.S, CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: Sth

LEAD POISONING

EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS

ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM

- ¥ 600,000 L. 22,000
TOTAL V.\' CHILDREN
DOLLARS * Ak SCREENED
$ 500,000 — s * i)
. 20,000
400,000 -|
. 18,000
300,000 -
FY8l FY82 FY83
Total number of children who need screening: 150,000% @
"( * estimated) :
1)
( %% ascimate unavailable)
P
. FY81 Fy82 FY83
FUNDING $515,000 $515,000% esticate
(DOLLARS & SOURCE) categorical grant unavailable
CHILDREN ’ i somewhat less
‘SCREENED FOR 23,005 22,000% than 22,000*

EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CUTS:

)
FY 1982: e Minimal,

O
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State of Pennsylvania made up the difference in lost
. federal dollars.

FY 19837 e Probably minimal.
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Paterson., N.J. :

RANK AMONG 10 WORST
y.s. CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 7th

v

EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND I_"UNDING CuTs
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM

175,000 -J R4 4,000 .
TOTAL 5 CHILDREN
DOLLARS 150,000 - ~O * 3,000  SCREENED
s * B
125,000 + * . ~ 2,000
e
100,000 + A - 1,000
calendar 1981 1982 1983
Total number of children who need screening: (¢navailable)
(* éstimated )
1981 1982 1983
FUNDING $161,000 $22,000% leftover categ. 8r. reduced
& SOURCE) categorical 79,000 MCH block grant funding
grant 219000 energy grant expected
$122,000* TOTAL
CHILDREN S
SCREENED FOR 4,298 3,000# 2,500%
LEAD POISONING -
.
EFFECTS QF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CUTS: ~
1982: e 2 (out of 9) staff members (health aide and clerk) fired. “

e Doctor's office hours reduced from 6 hrs./week to 2 hours/week.

e Follow-up ability hurt.

287 reduction in children screened.

1983: e Further reduced screening éapacity. Possibility of reduction in home vi:sits

and other follow-up.
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Mon(ge County (Rochester), N.Y.

: RANK AMONG 10 WQRST i
i U.S. CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 8th
- -
EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM o,
. =
-
300,000 . 6,000
TOTAL .-g. *k CHILDREN
¥ DOLLARS i | 5,000 SCREENED 4
. 5 2507000 - *x
’ - /‘ 3,000 *
‘ 200,000 -i . 3,000
' [
calendar 1981 1982 1983 ﬂ
v
s Total nusber of children who need screening: {estimate unavailable)
t & putimated ) -
%A aqtimate unavailable )
1981 1982 . 1933
. - . r e ’
Lo FINDING | $224,997 $169,000 MCH block grant | estimate
. (DLLARS & SOUR(FE) ‘ catepgorical grant 82,591 New York State |[unavailable
! ' $251,591 TOTAL
P |
CHILDREN v
SCREENED FOR ; 5,600% 5,600% estimate
. LEAD POISONING . unavailable
E"!-f,(TS OF BLOCK CRANT ’:\:‘lD BUDGET CUTS: o
"1382: e 3 (out ot 10) sraff members lost due to reduction in contracts funding
! ' (2 liaison personnel, 1 city bullding inspector).
L4n3: e Even if program incurs any significant cuts, screening should not be severely
. 1tfected, since most screens are done by private physicians. But follow-up,
environmental investigations, and lab work will be curtaited. Staif .has
already been cut to skeleton crew.
[} s * ¢
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' 7 Cleveland, Ohio

RANK AMONG 10 WORST

.5, CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 9th
' .
* EFFECT OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
. . ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM : L
200,000 < $
SR . 15,000
. TOTAL
DOLLARS 151,000 . * : CHILDREN
5 j . 12,500 SCREENED
1 * t
100,000 -t
- I 10,000
- B i 1
FY 1981 FY 1982 FY 1983
' ( * Estimate)
® Total number of children needing screening: (unavailable)
.
: FY 81 * FY 82 FY 83
e
!
FINDING i $202,000 ~% 96,000 MCH block $109,000
(DOLLARS s 3UURCE) categorical grant .
. grant 74,000% categorical (A 202 cut. Ex
cant pected cut: 5%-35%.
: & $165,000 needed ‘to
I} 5170,000 TOTAL malntain status quo.)
CHILDREN ! .
. SCREENED FOR { 14,000 12,700% . 11,300%
LEAD POISONING i {Few staff resources
{ * go to screening.
| h . Emphasis 1s on fol=
| ’ fow up.)
—

N v
EFFECTS OF BLOCK GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS:

FY 82: e 9% reduction In children screened for lead polsoning.

e Estimated 19% reduction in children screened.

e If 10% of funds are cut, 35% of follow-up will be abandoned.
More severe cuts will result in drastic reductlons in ability
to Insurc that lead levels in treated children remain low.

FY 83%:
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Chicago, Il1.
T RANK AMONG 10 WORST )

U.5. CITIES FOR LEAD PROBLEMS: 10th

. EFFECT OF BLOCK‘GRANT AND FUNDING CUTS
ON LEAD SCREENING PROGRAM °*

400,000
- . s . % . 50,000
ootiaRs T : 40,000 Corceuey
- ’ 200,600 T * - 30,000 b
. 3
A T »
FY 81 FY 82 FY 83 .
( * estimate) *
) Total number of children needing screening: (unavailable) *

FY 81 FY 82 FY 83
—
FINDING ! $425,000% $ 300,000 MCH block grant $331, 000%
(DOLLARS 5 SOURCE) | categorical . 125,000% state & city
I grant funds 4
l e
f $ 425,000 TOTAL
CHILDREN i N s
. SCREENED FOR i as,npo* | 40,000% 30,000+
LEAD POLSONING | j

{
EFFEETS OF BLOCK GRANT AND BUDGET CUTS:
FY R2: ® 117 reduction in chihldren screened for lead poisoning.
FY 83*: o Additional 257 reduction in children screened.

v

ERRATA . '
In Table 2 and the Appendix, the estlmated number of children
screened for lead poisoning in Newark, NJ in FY 1983 should read ;
‘4 3,000, not 300. This changes the overall average reduction in '

) children screened in FY 1983 to -50% of FY 1981 levels, rather o
- than =557%.
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Mr. Waxman, Thank you for your testimony. That is an excel-
lent statement.

Could you elaborate on the study and the findings? Which cities -

did you look at, and what, briefly, were the reductions in service to
children that each reported?

Mr. Jounson. We looked at 10 cities, cities with particularly high
positive screen rates. That is the percentage of children screened
who are found to need the medical care. So we were dealing with a
concentration of the lead problem’ as opposed to raw numbers of
childrenn who need care. We examined a number of programs in
New' Jersey that were lumped together by CDC; programs in
Newark: St. Louis; Jersey City; Philadelphia; Atlantic City; Pater-
son, New Jersey; Monroe County, which is Rochester, New York;
Cleveland, Ohio; and Chicago. These are the top 10 cities in the
United States for positive screens. Two did not receive Federal dol-
lars either under the categorical or block grant system so they
were excluded from the study, so we were left with eight.

What we found is that in the first year of the block grant there
were minor but significant, we believe, recuctions in both dollars to

the screening programs and children screened, about 10 percent in -

both cases. By end of the next fiscal year, health officials pre-
dict that becalse of this increased competition for block grant dol-
~lars, now that lead screening has to compete with other programs
in the MCH block and because many State legislators do not appre-
ciate the importance of the program, they will see a 50-percent re-
duction in children screened. :

Mr. WAXMAN. Is that the national estimate?. ‘

Mr. JoHNSON. It is an estimate based on these-8 cities. It is diffi-
cult to tell whether that is going to be a trend nationally or not. I
would not be surprised if it is.. Whether 50 percent or not, it is
clear that a large percentage of children who need screening are
not going to receive it under the block.

Mr. WaxMaN. That is a very sobering perspective. The Congress
is concerned because we realize that we are throwing away the

future. Young people are the future of this country, and this prob- -

lem is going to distress all of us. I find that a disturbing realiza-
tion. People talk about dollars and block grant formulations, but
there is an impact on human lives that goes along with it.

Thank you very much. '

Ms. Mikulski. .

Ms. Mixuirski. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Johnson, thank you for that very crisp and yet poignart tes-
timony. The chairman asked, some of the questions that I had. 1
was interested in the pgthf in your testimony where you talk about
other sources of lead that \‘\'ould affect children, and you specifical-
ly mentioned food, dust; and so on. I must confess I am not as fa-
miliar with these other sources that you have outlined, particularly

"in food. Could you outline what some of these are so I would have a
better idea? I think we,tend to focus on cities and paint.

“Mr. JouNsoN. Lead in food comes from a variety of sources. Even
if you buy—I will start with canned foods. Seventy-five percent of
the canned foods on the market are sealed with lead solder. This 1s
how the can is made. That lead solder contributes some lead to the
contents, particularly if the can is opened and the food is stored I'n
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the can after opening, and if the food is acidic—fruit juices, fruits,
tomato sauce, et cetera. Under those conditions lead leaching
occurs very quickly and in just several days, very hazardous levels
of lead can build up in the can’'s contents. We are ‘talking about
levels hazardous to 'small children and infants. So part of the lead
in our food supply comes from lead solder. Some is also contributed
during the canning process, through accidental contamination.
Some happens even with fresh foods, because lettuce or spinach
grown in a field is often near a roadway. If a car uses leaded gaso-
line, that lead travels out the exhaust pipe and into the air to*
settle on the leaves. The lead is transferred to us when we eat the
produce. Lead comes frém all over. T
Ms. Mikutskl Is that really serious, when we talk about growing
. food? For example, in certain areas there is truck farming. Also in
certain cities, one of the things that has been encouraged is urban
gardening, a way to grow your own food and save money and also
have something fresh. When one lives in the city growing food, par-
ticularly in communities like mine, which is urban, say we are
growing tomatoes in Baltimore City in my neighborhood, which is
halfway industrial, that would have lead on the food; is that cor-
rect?

Mr. JounsoN. That is correct.

Ms. Mixuiskl. How serious is that impact? ‘

Mr. Jounson. It is really difficult to tell how much of a hazard to
health a tomato that has been grown in a high-lead area is. What
is clear, and I base this on a report by the National Academy of *
Sciences, is that all the sources combined can greatly increase a
person’s exposure to lead. If you have a high-lead child and you
want to decrease his or her exposure to lead, you can educate par-
ents that lead comes from these sources, and that if they buy a can
of food, they shouldn’t store the food in the open “an. If they have
newspapers around with ink that contains lead, they shouldn’s let
their child chew on them. If they have a windowsill that collects
city dust make sure it is cleaned once in a while so a child will not
run his finger along it and pick up lead that way.

Ms. Mixuiskl. When you say water supply, Is that urban water
supply, well, spring water?

Mr. JonnsoN. It is difficult to say. The National Academy of Scis
ences has looked closer at this than our coalition has. My impres-
sion is it can come from two sources, either lead pollution from fac-
tories that use lead—battery factories, for example, where effluent
gets into the stream, or relatively safe water that travels through
old pipes that are leaded and so lead is picked up that way.

Ms. Mixuiskl. Thank you. You have told me a lot I did not know
this morning. Thank you. .

Mr. WaxMaN. Mr. Johnson, we appreciate very much your testi-
mony.

Ms. Mikutskr. That was superb. Thank you.

Mr. Waxman. Our next two witnesses have been involved with
the 'lead screening program here in the District of Columbia, Ms.
Karen Ehrnman and D\ Francis M. Palumbo. Both are associated
with the Committee for Ysead Elimination Action in the District of
Columbia. Dr. Palumbo serves as associate director of children and
youth ambulatory services in the Georgetown Hospital.
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[ thank both of you for being here to testify. We want to welcome

- you. We will make your prepared statements part of the record,

and we would like to ask you to summarize them in as brief a
period of time as possible so that we can have an opportunity for
questions and answers. !

STATEMENTS OF KAREN EHRNMAN, M.P.AL, COORDINATOR, COM-
MITTEE FOR LEAD ELIMINATION ACTION, DISTRICT oy CO-
LUMBIA AND ALSO CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL NATIONAL CENTER:
AND FRANCIS M. PALUMBO, M.D., ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF
CHILDREN AND YOUTH AMBULATORY SERVICES, GEORGE-
TOWN HOSPITAL ' .

Ms. EnrnMaN. | appreciate the opportunity to be here today. 1
am here in a capacity as the coordinator of the Committee for Lead
Elimination Action in the District of Columbia. This group is an
advocacy group and we are an advisory committee to our city’s lead
poisoning prevention program. The goal of our committee, which is
a broad-based consortium of public and private agencies, is the
eradication of lead poisoning in Washington. . '

[ would like to describe our efforts-in dealing with the maternal
and child health block grant in the District of Columbia. I feel we
all need to work together to create an imaginative way to finance .
health care that will provide quality care for our children. To

begin, our committee has been monitoring our city's lead program

for the last 10 years. We are aware of its strengths as well as its
weaknesses. As such we have followed the recommendations of the
Reagan administration in trying to educate our city heatth officials
to the problem. We have provided extensive testimony as well as.a
broad base of technical assistance to the city.
Regardless, today, to the best of my information, our funding
leve] for 1983 is $137,000, which is less than one-half that in 1982. 1
must say. at the present moment we are experiencing a reprieve be-
cause although the funding level for the block grant in 1983 is at
that 3137,000 level, the Commissioner of Health and the Mayor for
the 3 months, October, November, and- December, are funding the

program at the 1982 level while they investigate additional sources

of funds. ,

I would like to put this severe reduction in funding for the pro-
gram within the context of the maternal child health block grant.
to the District of Columbia. In my written testimony I have submit-
ted some of the actual dollar figures. In 1981 the block grant allo-
cation was approximately $8 million; in 1982 it goes down to—in
the attachment B it is §d million,-but it was actually $5 million be-
cause of a supplemental appropriation which came through late

- last summer. I would like to inform you that even with this $5 mil-

lion supplemental appropriation, the city was required to-transfer
funds from the preventive block grant and the alcohol and drug:
abuse and mental health block grant. 1982 promises to be similar
in the District-with the funding level at $137,000. This depends on
the continuing resolution before Congress, and all of us are reading
the newspaper daily and are aware of possible further cuts in D.C.

I would like to convey that these drastic cuts are occurring in a
supportive atmosphere ‘n the District of Columbia. The mayor and
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the Commissioner of Health understand lead poisoning. The mayor
has had his son tested for lead and has indicated to us a broad
range of suppdrt. Despite this and because of other acute problems
in the District, we are finding we need to live with these lower
dollar expenditures.

Categorical funding can insure that high-risk areas such as the
District of Columbia can spend additional ‘moneys on preventive
health care, and I am including lead screening and treatment pro-
grams within that category. I am not advocating going back to the
old system of categorical grants, but instead creating an imagina-
tive way that Federal categorical funding can provide incentives to
States and to high-risk areas by which jurisdictions are rewarded
for their success in.preventing diseases. In the District of Columbia
in 1973 our rate was 32 percent, and we are happy to be down'to a
rate of 1.2 percent. It is difficult when you have succeeded to con-
vince officials that in fact you still have a problem. =~

I would like to point out one additional reason ‘why we are sup-
porting categorical funding, and that is something that has to do
with the way once a child is identified with lead poisoning, cities go
into the homes and look for leéad-based paint. They use special ma-
chines called.X-ray fluorescent analyzers. We need these. machines
because they aré a less expensive means to determine lead-based
paint. We also look for other sources. Since the: Center for Disease
Control has taken a lower profile, there is no-longer a company
manufacturing these machines. This is a great problem for us.

We have tried to interest companies in providing this assistance,
but oue city alone cannot convince companies to manufacture ma-
chines. In conclusion, the. future of lead poisoning prevention in the
District is uncertain. We are concerned with the national data
which indicate that 4 percent of children in our Nation have lead
toxicity. We must continue to move beyond paying for sickness to
preventing it and I hope that my comments this morning can assist
you in working with us to provide such public policy for the United
States.

[Ms. Ernman’s prepared statement follows:)
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TESTIMONY
of

Karen Ehroman, H.P.H.

Good Morning. I am Karen Ehraman of Childreﬁ's Hospital National Medical
Center‘sloffice of Child Health Ad\;ocacy. I coordinate the Committee for Lead
Elimination Action #n the District of Columbia (L.E.A.D.), a consoertium of
public and private agencies, organizations, and concerned individuals,
repre§enting a broad cross-section of the District of Columbia's services and
resources. We are an advocacy group as well as an advisory c0mmittée to the

city's lead program, The goal of our committee {s the erradication of the lead

poisoning problem from Washington, D.C.

This forning 1 have been extended the privilege of testifying before this

k] i N
Subcommittee. Specifically, I would like to describe to you our committee’s

extensive efforts in dealing with the Haternal and Child Health (MCH) block
grant as it affects our city's lead poi.soni:;g prevention program. Y am pleased
to have the opportunity to share th.is information with you as I believe that the
nature of the financing of health care programs will have far-reaching

implications for the quality of health care We will be providing to our children

in the decade of the eighties.

To begin, oﬁr a11~volqnteer committee has been advocating on behalf of lead= .
toxic children for almost ten Years. Membership inclm‘lgs parents of lead-toxic
children, physicians, housing ins~pectors, pl‘lblic health officials, lawyers,
tandlords, university officials, school teachers, local legislators, and
others-all committed to the preven'tion of lead ;;oisoning. lTogether, we have
monitored a:.ld provided technical assistance to the city's lead poisoning
“"preventiun program which, Yyou know, has been a categorical grant funded in the
past through the Center for Disease Control. Our committee is well acquainted

with our lead program's strengths as well as its weaknesses. We are proud of its

success. In 1973, approximately 32% of children screened had elevated blood
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lead levels  Today, this figure has dropped dramatically to 1.2% (attachment
A). 1983 is the District of Columbia's first full year of block-grant' funding .
for this program. Accordingly,(/cﬁr committee has carefully £ollowed the

administration's recommendations for educating state éffici'als'to the need for
the program. -WeA have participated in extensive consx).itati‘o;x with the state
bealth department and have provided testimony before the State Healtl’ Planning
and Developmentfﬁgehcy as well as the City Council. We have also submitted
extensive documentation of the program's effectiveness to the Commissioner of
Health and to t‘he Mayor. Regardless, the best information available as of today

is that funding for the program in 1983 is projected to be less than one-half the

1982 funding level (1982 funding allocation was approximately $296,000; 1983 MCH

‘“block grant allocation is approximately $137,000)~ At the moment, however, we

O
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are experiencing a brief reprieve. Although the 1983 fiscal year officially
began vu October 1, 1982, the city's lead program continues to operate at the
1982 funding level. This decision, which is in effect until December 31, 1982,
was made by city health officials to allow sufficient time to identify

additional city funds to supplement the hlock grant. .

© At this rime, however, I would like to put these funding figures within the

context of maternal and child health dollars coming into the District .of
Columbia trom the federAl government (attachment B). In 1981, budget authority
' .
for materns! and child health programs was $8,234,219. In 1982 there was a
substantial reduction in the funding to a level of $5,008,000. (The city
received a supplemental allocation ‘in July which increased the level from
$4,679,000. to $5,008.00.). The provisional funding for. 1983-based on the
continuing resolution-continues at the same level, another loss for the cigy

once inflation is taken into consideration. f these funds, less than 3% has

t
been allocated te the city's lead screening and treatment program. However,
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\fltom 2 review of the proposed MCH allocatiox'ls (attachment C) it is clear.that
many valuable child health programs are Competing for limited dollars.
Certainly, in talking with both the Mayor and the Commissioner of Health, it has
been evident that they are aware of the need for this preventative {)rogram. -
Howeve‘r, as.we all kn.ow, urban areas are troubled by high rates of infant
mortalir_y,~4tubercu1.osis and other health problems-urgent problems which require
large dollar expenditures and 1‘eave 1ittle in reserve for the prevention of
disease.. ~

The lead screening programs are not examples of pure primary prevention, but the ¢

screening of high risk children has assisted in the early identifitation of a
Aad

lead problem (with sub‘seé;uent removal of the source of lead from the Chil_d) as
well as heighten community awarenesS of the en\;ironmental risk. This certainly

_ accounts, in part, for our success in the District of Columbia. The lead-based !
paint on ol. houses as well*as the many other sources of environmental lead

continue to surround our children.

In some ways our ‘success is a problem. It is easily assumed by health officials
that because of the dramatic decl,ine' in the rar_e of lead toxiciﬁy that the
problem has been solved., It is much more difficult to explaln l’.hdl’. the'decline
in the: rate of the disease is due in part to the dollars spent -that
.'environmental lead hazards remain-that new children are born and move into hlgh
risk environments-that oww parents need educating-and perhaps, most important,
that we k;'ave a much better knowledge of the devastating effects of even low -
level lead exi)OSUre in children. Whereas ten years ago we worried about!
children having seizures and- dying of lead poisoning, today we are concerned

about the damaging effects o,f lead on the brain and central nervous system at a

much lower level of exposure. The nature of the problem has changed, but’ in some
4
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61
ways it has become more elusive and more complex. Categorical federal funding
targeted at specific problems ensures that high risk areas will spend “some
health dollafs on prevention. Instead, today in the District of Columbia we are
‘uncertain of the outcome of the deliberations about the block grant in

¥

relationship to the lead program.

Permit me one furﬁher example to indicate the need for 8 continued national
focus on the prevention of lead poisoning. ln the District of Columhia, once a
child is identified wi_th'au elevated lead level, the home is inspected for lead-

based paint hazards. The most efficient and .'most cost-effective means of this

4
inspection is with the flourescent analyzer. With the loss of a national

coordinating ability there is no longer a company in the United States

manufacturing such machines. (Cities must rely on repair of old machiués and the
»

more expensive laboratory analysis of paint chips. » It would seem that we could

~

do better than this in 1982.

The findings of the Second National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey
confirmed the health impact of continued lead pollution-4% of our nation's
‘children haye lead to;cicity. By a combiued-apptoach of reduction of
environmental lead . exposure, public education, and;quality screening and
treatment programs further reduction in undue lead absorption is possih{;’e. To
shepherd our resources we must go beyond paying for sickness to preventing it,

beyond restoring good health to engendering it. Thank you far your attention.

KE/jj
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“.Community involvement In the Prevention

of Childhood Lead Poisoning

Attachment A

Committee for Lead Elimination Actign *
in the District of Solumbia *745-3029 Karen Ehrnman. M.P.H.*
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Mr -Waxman Thank you very much. Your testimony will be of
great assistance to us as we bring this problem to our colleagues’
attention. .

Dr Palumbaq.

STATEMENT OF FRANCIS M. PALUMBO, M.D.

Dr  Parumeo. My comments will be from a slightly different per-
gpective.

[ lam also, in addition to my other duties, a practicing ped#atri-
cian in Washington, and did have on a number of occasions the op-
portunity to deal with a number of families in whom children were
in fact poisoned with lead.

My testimony deals primarily with a family of six children. Ini-
tially only five of them were affected with lead poisoning, now the
sixth is also. The impact of lead poisoning on a family can be quite
significant, as it was in this family.

The initial symptoms were very mild and nonspecific. Fortunate-
ly these children were screened, and they were identified as having
mildly elevated levels of lead. Had they not been screened, the ini-
tiul svmptoms were so nonspecific that it would have been very
likely that they would not have been attended to as quickly as they
were. Because they were screened, they were immediately brought
to our facility, and we retested them and found that their levels
were extremely elevated to the point of being critical, to the point
twhere seizures were imminent if they were wnot immediately at-
tended to. .

They were brought into the hospital. Théy were treated, the
treatment was costly, lengthy, and painful. A number of them had
to be retreated for the same problem. It was fortunate that we
were able to identify the problem though before the outcome could
potentially have been tragice It was only through the fact that
these children were screened agmd identified early that we were
able to do this. v

Other stories are similar. This is not uncommon. I would only
say thdt the resources that went into thé identifying of this family,
the subsequent followup of this family, were significant. ;

#As was stated earlier, it is followup, it is education, it is out-

“reach, without which a screening program is useless, without

proper followup, - without proper resources available to do some-
thing about what you are finding.

As Karen said, in the District the funding is going to he cut se-
verely unless other funds are found, and it seems to me that it-is

- unreasonable to think that we will be able to continue this type of

program at this level ‘with~the-success and ‘efficiency with which
the program in the District is run unless funds aré made availgblé
through the Government, through creative refunding ,and, as
Karen suggests, or from whatever sdurces.

{Dr. Palumbo's prepared statement follows:]
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TESTTIMONY

FRANCIS M. PALLMBO, M.D.

te grarted mildly enough - walld abdonuanal pann, some slight changes
ut tebavior.  Mother was concerTexd = s any car ing rother would be - when
the syrgtoms persisted. These uxﬂ;rLunL:, would vrdinarily have “been
drsmissed s wnsicnificant - oan m\p«»ndu\q r1ld stamach-flu or the: difficults

copperment of a toddler. Fortunately, Tony had been screened for lead

porsoniny.  His lead level at the time of scret.;ning had been only minimally

elovated but was indicative of an’ environmental lead hazard. Could he have
been caotinually exposed to this hazard? Could he have been continually
ingesting this lead? Y\utu these complaints have been the carly sywptoms
e oelinieal.lead poisoning?  Tony was quickly brought to my office.
frorgeney load lewels were drawn on him and his four other siblings. I was
start led £¥ the results.  All five children Lnéludinq the 8 month old had

dangerously huah levels. Their levels were so extremely clevated that

selsures wero unninent. The situation was critical. The children were .
admittad to the hospital where they underwent a series of very painful injections
wn order to cleanse their systems of their potentially fatal toxin. The
treatrent was suceessiul.  The lead that was insiduously poisoning their

systems was reduced to safer levels. Had thest children not been screened
the cutcone would have been traqlc - five perfectly normal, heulthy, happj
ohiliren weul ! have suffered siynificant and lasting brain damage. The

Lorden on their lives, their €amily and society would have been immeasurable.

The story of Tony amd his n'" 1y 1is only one of many such stories
arcund this mity.  Another patient of mine was identified as having an
excessive lead level after being screened at a local health fair. She, too,

was successfully chelated before significant damage occurred.

1t is clear tram these brief case presentations that appropriate N
sereenir test s 'xw'cnt the .uumlfwant:Lonsequ('ncc'—: of casily treatable
curditie s such as l&dk. poLs omnq 1t is also clear that the success of
lTead serenuv uu.n‘u\sl(\ruuml the comtry is being threatencd by the bleck -
foant Lot emtsn As loss chi ldren are screencd, as less outreach and

elueat TR dere, an {ower homes are abatex] of excessive 1cad hazards,

chilidren like Tony will not be identified until significant irreversible .

damage has already cccurred. It is, therefore, essential that lead

pOLSONLN Preventlon proyrans continue to function at their present levels
nf efficiency and success.  In orler for this to occur, it is clear that

funding must remain at reasonable levels. It it is unreasonable to expect

. funding to be adequate under the pres'ent block grant allocations.
7" “
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Mr. Waxman. Thank you.

Ms. Ehrnman, | want to commend your all-volunteer committee
on the work it has done. Is the committee in a' position to pick up
on those activities that the District may be forced to cut back on?

Ms. EHRNMAN, No. Our committee is advisory to the program.
We do not deliver any direct services.

Mr. WaxmaN. What ‘program is the lead prevention program
competing against for funding?

[ think that would give us some idea of the dilemma that must
go on at the local government level. ~

Ms.. EHRNMAN. Attachment C gives some indication of that. The
large portion of moneys spent in this city are on maternal and
child health clinics throughout the city, the crippled children’s pro-
gram, other education and counseling services, sudden infant death
syndrome, and there are others. Tough competition. '

Mr. Waxman. So, in the District of Columbia or the States
throughout the country, they have to choose between: these pro-
grams to aid crippled children, to screen for lead poisoning, one to
give to anqgther. All of these programs competing and going without
sufficient funding I would expect is the case.

* Dr. Parumsa. From my perspective as being a practicing pedia-
trician, it seems to me that there just isn’t enough money to go
around.

Mr. Waxman. If a child has low-level lead poisoning, is there a
seizure impact? :

You mention nonspecific symptoms; could a child be thought of
as being slow or having behavioral. problems?

Dr. PaLumBo. In this particular case there was a change in be-
havior, nonspecific and nominal complaints. We were seeing the
symptoms of early acute lead poisoning. If the exposure had been
allowed to continue, we would have seen what we don’t usually see
much any more, the coma, the seizures. The more insidious symp-
toms of chronic lead exposure, behavior problems, learning prob-
lems, which are much more difficult to pick up on because they are |
insidious and chronic. v ' ,‘

You may see; a child who is not performing as well as you would
expect or a child who is not doing the things that they had been
doing previously. In high risk situations, lead should always be con-
sidered as a potential cause of these problems.

Mr. WaxMaN. You say we don’t see many of these problems any
more because of screening, but if we don’t have screening capabili-
ties, we will see more of these problems?

Dr. PaLumBo. That is a logical conclusion. The only reason the
family was brought in when they were was simply becausé they
had been screened.

Mr. WaxmanN. Ms. Mikulski. . ‘

Ms. Mikurskl. Thank you for telling us about Tony, because
when we deal in large numbers it is hard to put a human face to it,
If T could go through with Tony, I really have—I would like to
follow Tony through if I could. : ¢

We hear about screening, diagnosis, the treatment that you
talked about, and I am interested in, one, how does it work, and
second, kind of a per family or per case basis, how much did it cost
to examine Tony? How much did it cost to treat Tony and his sib-
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lings? And then, had it not been detected, what ould you have
done with Tony if he would have come in with it undetected? From
the time he walked in, what are the diagnostic procedures?

~ Dr. PaLumso. Well, the first thing we needed to do was to bring
them back and confirm the values and see where they were. This
required bringing all five of them into our facility, retesting them.
We had to arrange for emergency testing to be done. The blood was
taken by courier to the District. "

Ms. MikuLskl. It is a simple blood test?

Dr. PaLumso. Initially. We did X-rays, looked at their blood
counts, their urine, other areas where we might be able to detect
the presence of lead. 4 -

‘ortunately, begause of the efficiency of the system in the Dis-
trict, we were able to get these tests done within a few hours. We
realized then that that was a critical situation.

Ms. MiguLsk!. Is that average, shall [ say, that you could have
done the urine, blood, et cetera, and you said you had these in-a
matter of hours. Is that normal around the country?

Dr. PaLumBso. I am not sure. [ am just familiar with the District,
and it is a very efficient program, and we were able to take advan- -
tage of that. The children were then admitted to the hospital, and
all five required therapy. We depleted the Washington area of the
chelating agents so severe were the problems.’ A

Incidentally, our pharmacy had to appeal to other local areas to
get enough of the medication, since three children had to be. reche-
lated. You are giving a dose with higher affinity for lead than the
body. The medication draws the lead out of the tissues and it can
then be excreted in the urine. ) '

Ms. MikuLsSKI. You say it is very painful?

Dr. PaLumso. It is given by deep ,i"ntramusc%l,ar injection, so it is
painful. . ,

Each received two injections during the day.

Ms. MixuLski. How long did i take to do that?

Dr. PaLumpo. The first course was 5 days, and then we had to
wait a bit since there is a norfnal period where the lead rebounds
and for three of them it reboyind to‘'where they had tc, be zechelat-
ed. - ' /

Ms. MIkULSKI. A quick diégnosis, not only in terms of the hours
it took to identify the problem, but this was discovered early in
terms of its body ramifications. When would a threshold have been
crossed where you couldn/.t»have brought those children xback, or is
all lead reversible? /

Dr. PaLumgo. It depends on the level of the exposure and the
chronicity.of it. A child who has never been exposed to lead who
wanders into a home where there is flaking paint and eats a few
paint chips may rapidly increase their level and potentially not
suffer damage, depending on how high the level is. :

The child in the same setting who comes in, eats an excessive

amount of lead-based paint, could have a seizure and go into coma—

and subsequently suffer significant brain damage.

. The other situation would be the child who is exposed to chronic
low levels of lead over a period of time during which time effects
may not be as }amatic as a seizure or coma, but you get the subtle

"‘"3
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complications, the learning problems, behavioral disorders, that
have only been recognized within the last 5 years.
- Ms. MikuLski. When the lead level is up, does it stay up?

Dr. Parumso. It depends on the exposure. If you remove them
from the environment, it will go down bdy while the lead is there it
does the damage. It is crucial to n6t only remove them from the
environment, but to remove the lead from their bodies. -

'Ms. MikuLsKL Say you had seen \this family even a.year or two-
later and the damge had been done) they would have had seizures
in the home and s0 on, what do you Yo with those kid hat hap-
pens? .

Dr. PaLumso. After?

Ms. MikuLski. Yes.

Dr. PaLumso. After \they have already suyffered significant
damage, it depends on? severity of it. They wduld certainly need
special education deperdi

Ing on the types of brain\damage: Physical
therapy, occupational therapy. If they were severgly retarded, long-
term institutionalization, significant cost, signifi
efotional drain on the-family. It would be

Ms. Mikuiskl. That takes me back to
Tony's levels get so high?

Dr: PaLuMBo. The lead was in the home.

Interestingly, what might have happened in this situation when.
‘the initial lead hazard was identified, we went through the usual
procedure, the usual protocol; the lead poisoning prevention pro-
gram was notified, the home was inspected, the environment was
identified as having lead-based paint. It was most likely when an
attempt was made to clear the environment of the lead with scrap-
ing and peeling and sanding,-a lot of lead was then released into
the environment, and without proper—unfortunately, there were
not proper precautions’taken at the time of abatement to complete-
ly clean the home of the lead hazard, so there was a lot more lead
in the environment because of the abatement procedur® than there
had been. .

Ms. Mikurski. How much did the diagnosis cost per child? Do
vou know that? ‘ :

Dlll PaLumBo. We had five children in the hospital for close to 2
weeks.

Ms. MikuLskl. What was the treatment, the part where they are
doing the blood and the urinalysis? ’ '

Dr. PaLumeo. Because of the lead program in the District, the
actual testing was free. So that didn’t cost the patient anything. It
cost the District, the lead poisoning program.
© Ms. MikuLski. How much did it cost the District?

Dr. Parumgo. I am not certain.

Ms. EHRNMAN. [ am not certain either. Blood tests are generally
considered to be expensive, a urine test more. :

Ms. Mikuiskr. Was it $10, $100?

Dr. PaLumBo. 310 sounds reasonable.

Ms. MikuLskL Maybe 10 bucks a child? :

Ms. EHRNMAN. T think that is realistic. Certainly not any higher
than $35. That would be the highest. 3 X

Ms. MikuLski. So for the diagnosis of Tony and his brothers and
sisters, we spent not more than $100 or $125 for the diagnosis.
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Then your treatment, of course,ysbitalization——what is a day at
Georgetown? '

Dr. PaLuMmso. It is somew éré in the $180 to $200 range per
child.’ .

Ms. MikuLskl. And then'the chelation, was that expensive? © |

Dr. Parumso. I am mdt sure of the cost of that, but I am sure it
was. It is not a commion medication, so I am sure it was expensive.

The other studiés done, the X-rays and blood counts and blood
tests, | am sur€ the hospital bill for all five children would have
been significant, certainly in the thousands.

Ms. MikULsk1. Probably paid for by medicaid?

Dr. PALUMBO. Yes.

Ms. MikuLskL The reason I am going through this almost tedious
thing is that back here was $10 worth of medical diagnosis. The

_‘abatement was done. Because of the way the abatement was done,

each next step becomes more complicated and ultimately more bur-
densome to the family and to society. .

By the time we got the chelation, we were talking $1,000 or more
per child. Once we got past that, had Georgetown not interceded,
the cost to public facilities, it seems to me it increases geometrical-
ly. . :
" Dr. Parumso. Yes. .

Ms. MikuLskl. ‘That gives the whole argument for doing the pro-
gram in the first place. These machines you talked about, what do
they do? Do they do diagnosis? > :

Ms. EHrNMAN. You hold it against the wall ofya building and it
identifies whether or not there is lead-based paint on that wall.

Ms. MikuLsKl. It is portable?

Ms. EHRNMAN. Yes.

Ms. MikuLski. How much do they cost?

Ms. EHrNMaN. $7,000 per machine, but we can no longer. buy a
new machine. There is no company currently making the ma-
chines. ¢ ’

Ms. MikuLskl. In Europe either, or——

Ms. EHrNMAN. I only know about the United States. _

Ms. MikuULskKl. Maybe we better call Toyota and we could get it
for $600 for the mayor's Christmas present.

You then tried to get companies to donate the machines?

Ms. EnrnmaN. No; we tried to get some companies interested in
,making them. It is evident that it is less expensive to use a porta-
ble machine that you put against the wall to identify if that is
lead-based paint rather than needing to analyze paint chips in a
laboratory. Even though the machines initially are expensive,
when you are dealing with large numbers of children it is more
cost effective to use machines.

In addition, in homes which do not have peeling and flaking
paint, it is a lot tp ask a family if you can chip their paint to ana-
lvze it, and you need to chip it in several different areas, because
obviously children are exposed to more than one wall in the house.
That is why. the cities which had in the past”been funded by cate-

~ gorical funds had these machines.

Ms. MikuLski. Why did they stop making the machines?
Ms. EHrRNMAN. They were expensive to use. Only the cities that
were funded were buying the machines and there was no incentive.
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They knew the programs were joining into the block grant and
then there was no incentive to buy the machines.

Ms. Mikviski. Thank you.

Mr. WaxMaN. Mr. Walgren.

Mr. WALGREN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

How many children are being screened now? I notice that the
percentage with elevated levels is going down, but how many chil-
dren are being screened?

Ms, EHRNMAN. Last year in the District, 1:4,000.

Mr. WALGREN. Is that fewer than in previous years?

Ms. EHRNMAN. No, it is about the same. '

Mr. WaLGREN. What are the sources of lead poisoning other than
paint? Where is all this stuff? ' .

Ms. EHRNMAN. In the District of Columbia, we can identify lead-
based paint in the homes of about &5 percent of the children with
elevated blood lead levels, blood lead levels over 30, which is the
trigger point-by which the city gets involved. :

With those children we also find lead in dust in the homes,
which probably initially comes from the lead-based paint, lead in
the dirt outside the homes, obviously there is lead in the air. Cer-
tain children we have found lead in the ashes of fireplates from
the burning of newspapers and the parents have reported the chil-
dren eating the ashes.

Occasionally we find families who are using old pewter contain-
ers which on analysis it is thought they contain lead and acidic
juices will leach the lead out of the pewter, and pottery with lead
glazes on, which causes additional source of lead to the child,

Mr. WALGREN. What is the status of present paints? If go down
to the store and buy paint——

Dr. ParuaBo. Interior paint now is lead free.

Ms. EHRNMAN. As is exterior.

Mr. WALGREN What about the spray cans of Rustoleum? .

Ms. EHRNMAN. No lead. The last time I talked with the coating
association, they assured me there is not lead in paint, with the ex-
ception of lead for bridges. There are specific paints containing
lead. but in my conversations with them, I recall there is some
sense of control for that, so that they feel that a family cannot
easily get acceéss to the paint for bridges and use it in homes.

Dr. PaLumBo. There has been a problem with the Mystic Bridge
in Boston. Apparently there has been painting 2nd scraping and
there is some concern about the families in the area.

Mr. WALGREN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, .

Mr. Waxman. Thank you very much, Mr. Walgren.’

Dr. Palumbo, Ms. Ehrnman, thank you for your contribution to
this hearing. ) :

Mr. WaLGreN. 1 am sorry, if T could just ask one other question.

Mr. WAXMAN. Yes.

Mr. WALGREN What percentage of residences have lead-based
paint presently, and does your program involve a universal screen-
ing of residences regardless of the age of the people living in the
residences, and how completely have residential areas been
screened for this?

Ms. EnrNMAN. For public housing, we have just completed- here
in the District a survey of all public housing which houses children

M
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6 and under, so we know the status of that and there continues to
be some lead-based paint inour public housing. But there is a spe-
cial appropriation in the District to eliminate that hazard and that
is being worked on. :

In private dwellings we do not routinely go in and look for lead-
based paint. Only when a child has been identified with an elevat-
od blood level is the house inspectcd. -

Mr. WanGreN So there are tens of thousands of units out there

" that might be lived in by & 6o-year-old couple that next year a baby

might move into and the only awareness of that would be through
your community information system, and the parent must in fact
pick up that warning and knqw to ask some question or have that
home inspected: is that correctpes=

Dr. PaLumso. Basically that is correct, but if a child in an area is
identified as having lead poisoning and the home is inspected and
found to have lead-based paint, teams will go out and screen chil-
dren in the neighborhood and try to get a sense of what is happen-
ing in that neighborhood. So there is an effort made to identify—
unfortunately, you cannot request a home to be inspected if a child
hus not. or someone has not been identified as having an increased
lead level. That has come up a number of times.

But neighborhoods will be screened at least in terms of the possi-
bility of there being other children with lead poisoning in a partic-
ular neighborhood. There is a row of houses, all built at the same
time by the same person, there is a high chance that there will be
other children on that block in that community who will also be
potential candidates for lead poisoning, and if they are identified
then those homes will be subsequently inspected. '

Mr. WaLGREN Thank yous Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Waxaan. Thank you very much.

QOur last panel is composed of Dr. Ellen Silbergeld, chief toxic sci-

_entist for the Environmental Defense Fund, and Dr. Barbara Star-

field, Department-of Health Services Administration at Johns Hop-

kins University: .

Dr. Starfield is testifying today on behalf of the American Public
Health Association.

[ want to welcome you. ,

And we also have accompanying ous witnesses that I have intro-
duced. Dr. Devra Lee Davis, a faculty member of the Johns Hop-
kins Univerity School of Hygiene and Public Health, who will be
here to answer questions. ‘ . i

1 think there was some confusion on communications with Dr.
Davis. If she wishes to add a statement in the record, we will be
pleased to receive it so that we will have the further benefit of her
VIeWs. .,

Let's start with Dr. Silbergeld.

STATEMENTS OF ELLEN K. SILBERGELD, PH. D., CHIEF TOXICS
SCIENTIST, ENY TRONMENTAL DEFENSE FUND: BARBARA STAR-
FIELD. 3D, ABIL, ON BEHALE OF AMERICAN PUBLIC HEALTIH
ASSOCIATION: AND DEYRA LEE DAVIS, BALTIMORE, MD.

Dr. SiLeerGELD. In addition to presenting the views of the Envi-
ronmental Defense Fund, of which I am the chiefl toxic scientist, I

\
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am also personally pleased to discuss this issue before your com-
mittee today, because I was involved for 10 years in basic research
on lead poisoning, specifically the nature of the adverse effects of
lead exposure on the developing brain. :

For some reason, lead poisoning exerts an extraordinary fascina-
tion upon this administration. We have lived through about 8
months of negotiations, ultimately concluded, which have reinstat-
ed the phasedown program to keep lead out of gasoline. We may be
about to live through another nightmare concerning the prevention
of occupational lead poisoning. Today we are attempting to deter-
mine whether we will indeed even look for lead poisoning when it
occurs in our population. . .

[ want to talk about three issues primarily related to current.
knowledge about the nature of lead poisoning in this country,
which argue strongly and specifically for preserving and strength-
ening the categorical status of the program perhaps over some of
the other concerns which confront you in the area of maternal and
child health. :

Building on 10 years of work, based on an important article by
Dr. Jane Lin-Fu in 1973, we now know that for lead there really is
no margin of safety in terms of exposure, that many of its effects
on the brain are irreversible and that, as a consequence, detection
and early intervention remain the only adequate methods of treat-
ment.

All the maneuvers [ referred to earlier as going on in this admin-
istration, coupled with the dismantlement of the program in HUD
which deals with many of the housing problems of concern to Con-
gressman -Walgren impact directly on children. Children are the
most sensitive to lead in terms of the severity of effects which are
observed. -

At the level of the nerve in the brain, lead interferes with chemi-
cal processes of information transfer, with no threshold for its ef-
fects. Those thresholds which appear to exist in medical practice
for the effects of lead in children are probably provided by physio-
logical processes which keep lead from entering the brain and
being taken up by nerve cells.

Howeter, once lead enters a nerve, it is very difficult, if not im-
possibleito remove it by any of the strategies of chelation therapy
or otheritechniques which you have heard of earlier. At our pres-
ent state iof knowledge, blood level concentrations are the best indi-
cator for' current exposure to lead. By obtaining accurate and
proper measurements of blood lead, it is possible for physicians and
health workers to intervene and propose medical treatment to
reduce the circulating levels of lead and prevent large amounts
from reaching and binding to cells in the brain.

On page 4, | have included the results of a study undertaken in
collaboration with Dr. Julian Chisolm of Johns Hopkins showing
blood lead on the X-axis and an indicator of altered brajn metabo-
lism, HVA in urine, shown on the Y-axis. There are sevéral inter-
. esting factors about the curve.

First, as blood lead increases, the alteration in brain
also increased. :

Ms. SILBERGELD. Second, there were significant outliers from the
regression line, which are not shown on this graph. These repre-
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sented childsen who had repeated episodes of lead poisoning. Put
- very simply, that is, if a child came in for the second, third, or -
fourth time. then for a given level of lead in blood that child had
an even greater increasg in this metabolite in brain chemistry. The
other point to keép in mind is to do this research requires hospitals-
ization and extensive treatment of children, measurement of lead
in urine and blood. The costs.were probably in excess of $250,000.

Among the diseases caused by external agents, the need for early
intervention is compelling in the case of lead poisoning. Exposure
of children to very low levels of -lead adversely affects neuro-
behavioral development. There are now several new studies con-
ducted in this country, England, and West Germany, which demon-
strate significant deterioration in intelligence associated with what
used to be called subclinical or asymptomatic lead poisoning. )

Those very names should indicate to you the need for an aggres-
sive sereening program. “Subclinical”—below the level of express-
ing clinical signs, “a.ymptomatic”’—in the absence of overt detect-
able symptoms. The nature of low level lead poisoning is such that
it can and does easily escape detection by clinicians. Treatment is
vigal before the effects of lead are symptomatic or clinical, un-
equivocal and overt. At such stages as these early asy tomatic-

. subclinical stages, identification can only be made by screening
programs using the biological indicators as blood lead or EP tests.
" Ms. MikuLsk! [presiding]. May 1 ask you a question here?

[ don't mean to sidetrack the testimony, but is the technology
available, and I don’t mean rarely available, to really do the diag-
nosis that you are referring to? There is an example for PCB. What
‘\goes it mean? ’

Again, Johns Hopkins is doing an environmental study to detect
this in the State of New York. The levels that>you are taltking
about, can we really do it with blood tests, or is it the kind of thing
we have to fly to California because there is only one lab in the
world that does it? )

Ms. SILEERGELD. No; we are very fortunate that we can measure
lead in blood down to extremely low levels; indeed, by fairly inex-
pensive instrumentation. I am referring to the anodic stripping vol-
tametric tghnique.

Again, as"Ms. Ehrnman pointed out to you, this instrument has
been developed and is now in use in many of the large cities and
public health screening programs in this country. It as been en-
dorsed by the Centers for Disease Control.

The technology exists. Now, the technology for determining that
an effect has been induced in a child’s brain is very difficult. So, if .
we are going to wait until we can see these symptoms, these subtle
olfects in behavior which may be very difficult to see in the pre- “
school child—and I will get-to some of the nature of this evidence—
then | think it is a hopeless battle. We will be back to looking for
lead lines in teeth, X-raying the stomach contents, waiting for seiz-
ure. malaise, fatigue, and what used to be called the overt symp-
tomatology of lead encephalopathy.

Ms. MikcLskl, 1 understand.

Ms. SiLERGELD. That really speaks to the point I am moving to,
and that s that the studies that have been done” which demon-
strate a-connection between these lower levels of blood lead and ef-
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fects on children’s brains have been done in children, none of
whom were diagnosed at the time of their active exposure as being
lead-poisoned. None of these children came to the attention of the
relevant public authorities in London, Boston, or Dusseldorf as
being lead poisoned. It was only the basis of retrospective studies

“done by tooth lead analysis, that one detected that they were

~~

indeed overburdened with lead.

Now, it has been argued by some that the effects of lead on intel-
ligence and learning which have been reported at these low levels
of exposure are not large, that they amount to a drop of five points |
in the mean IQ scores of children measured many years after their
encounters with lead. If you look on page 6, I think you really can
gain an appreciation of what this effect means. This does not just
mean that, for example, children ‘who have lower lzvels of lead—
and really have to be,categorized this way, because we all have
body burdens of lead—children at the lower lead category achieve
1Q scores as high as 185; whereas children with higher lead bur-
dens in the tooth measurements do not achieve any IQ score higher
than 120.

But what has happened here is that the entire curve is shifted to
the left. We are losing that entire 'segment of intellectual perform-
ance as a result of very low levels of lead exposure in a large group
of children, none of whom were ever diagnosed as suffering from
lead poisoning.. : R

This is a very serious effect for.both the individuals at risk, obvi-

. ously, and it it important for 'society, which must deal with large

3

numbers of untrainable and unproductive members.
Indeed, the Public Health Service is considering the recommen-

*dation that lead screening be part of the routine clinical evaluation

of all children in“this country, or at léast that was its proposal
until its decimation submitted by OMBgyesterday. . e <o

Now, I would like to also bring to your attention another item of
research interest with regard to lead. New clinical and experimen-
tal information indicates that the unborn child may be at even
greater risk for the effects of lead than children after birth. Both
the male and female parent appear to be able to convey lead-in-
duced. neurologic deficits to their children. For that reason, we sug-
gest that the national lead screening programs need to be expand-
ed to cover persons of childbearing age, so that programs of special’
intervention, such as dietary compensation and alleviation of expo-
sure, can be put in place'to-ameliorate these potentially devastat-
tng effects. Also, information on prenatal and pregestational effects
of lead will aid in developing appropriate strategies for asessing the
extent of this exposure and for appropriate methods for controlling
it. : .
We find it cynical that an administration which repeatedly
voices a concern for children to a biological extreme can disregard
the evidence for lead as a fetotoxin, teratogen, a germ cell mutagen
and neu:otoxin of particular potenfy in its attack on the young
child’s brain." - .

All these lines of -evidence suppottithe childhood lead screening
program and indicate that it must be retained and strengthened
within the Centers for Disease Control.

"74‘
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There are many compelling medical public health reasons for
this specific recommendation.

First, in order to assign appropriate strategies to prevent the

" cgntinuing epidemic of lead poisoning on a national basis, it is,im-

peritive to maintain lead poisoning as a reportable disease within
" the purview of the Public Health Service. Now, you heard some
vague promises from Dr. Hardy earlier this morning that some sort
of voluntary reporting system will remain in place, even after the
devastation of this program. I think that is highly unlikely. With-
_out therdocumentation available. from the interface of the CDC and
the Natignal Center’ for Health Statistics, we would never have
gained the information which showed so clearly that lead in gaso-
line was an important source of lead in children’s bodies and an
important cause of lead poisoning in these children. .

+Second, even from a cost-effective point of view, it is clear that
. CDC should continue to run an .expanded lead screening program.
Fragmentation of the screening program into State and local enti-
ties will greatly increase the expense of this prograiy, particularly
such vital aspects as quality control and data gathering. Now, we
talked a little bit earlier about the instrumentédtion and the mecha-
nisms which are undetrtaken to screen children for lead. Maintain-
ing appropriate quality control of lead scPeening laboratories is a
very difficult task. The Center for Disease Cortrol, in collaboration
with the National Bureau of Standards, has developed a perform-
. ance-oriented program whereby State and local laboratories can
know that they are performing within appropriate criteria; that
their results are accurate. To remove tjhis"program from a national
focus would diminish this quality control aspegt so vital to the rec- °
ognition and intervention in lead poisoning.

Third, to embark on any policy which in all likelihood will 1lead
to the diminution, if not destruction, of this program will, cause tre-
mendous costs to accrue from the undetected, and untreated cases
of lead poisoning. These’ cages will eventually come to our atten-
. tion, but they will come to our affention at a point when they are
no longer treatable, and when the consequengces~ior society are
truly devastating. I have included on page 9 some data that was
developed by Dr. George Provenzano, on the Environmental Protec-
tion Agency, on the societal causes of intellectual deficits associat-
ed with lead. At the bottom line, they indicate wosts between $500
million and $1 billion. Keep in mind that these costs are based on
the 1978 health costs which this committee recognizes are low at
the present time. Theregare also based on estimates of the preva-
lence of lead poisoning which we now know .are under estimates on
the basis of CDC’s data gathering. Thus, the real costs of untreated
lead poisoning in this country are conservatively in the range of
billions of dollars. The destruction of the lead screening program,
as E;‘Eoposed, will block our window on an enormous public health
epidemic. ' ! .

It will obstruct and decrease the efforts of community health
workers tordetect and treat lead poisoning. It will eliminate infor-
mation which might guide programs of environmental cleanup and
source control, ranging from abatement of old housing to modifica-
tions of the Clean Air Act. It is this latter aspect which perhaps
‘explains the special energy with which this administration contin-




ues to attack all aspects of lead poisoning. Never send to know for
whom the bell tolls, admonished the poet Donne. This is no less
than an attempt to cut down the, bell apd silence bellringers by
those who do not wish to act on its conclusions.

Lead poisoning is the clearest instance of an environmental dis-
ease that we have before us. If we cannot act to prevent this dis-
ease, how much more feeble will our efforts be to protect American
health before the onslaught of other toxic substances against us.

Thank you. .

[Dr. Silbergeld’s prepared statement follows:]

a

84




8

TESTIMONY

oF .

DR. ELLEN K. SILBERGELD ¢

o

CHIEF TOXICS SCIENTIST
ENVIRONMENTAL DEFENSE FUND
. ’ T’

on behalf of the Environmental Defense Fund, I am pleased
to present testimony on the childhood lead screening program§

in the United States. The E(ﬂ?ﬁonmental pefense Fund is a .

national nonprofit organization, with 50,000 members, staffed

by scientists and attorneys at five regional offices in New

york, washington, Richmond, Boulder, and Berkeley, and
dedicated to the development of rationai‘appfoaches to
environmental problems. ‘I am Chief Toxics Scientist of the
Environmental Defense Fund; in addition to reptesenting the
concerns of my organization, I have a 1ongstahding interest in

the issue of lead poisoning. I spent ten years as a rese rch

D

scientist, at the Johns Hopkins Medical Institutions and the
National“Institutes of Headth investigating the adverse effecls
of lead exposure. I have published many papers and geviews '
‘lhe subject of lead toxicity.

These hearings provide a forum for discussing what is

probably the most significant and pervasive environmental

-

illness in this country. 1In the past decade, since Dr. Jane

ERIC

: :




ERI

Lin-ti's seminal reappraisal of the lead poisoning problem,
there nads peen an extraordinary expansion of our knowledge of

Ene health haﬁards of low level lead exposure, Experimental

fresear el hidc \Cunfac ed,the concerns of physicians, that for
AN

irad '59§$ 15 really no margin of safety, that many of the
etfects fuf lead are irreversible, particularly for the brain of
yuugg ¢hildren, and that detection and early intervention
:v:ux; the onl} aquanefﬁ%thods of treatment,

Muleoaver, trese hearings do not take place in a-vacuum.
This administration appears determined to make lead a central

15sde 1n their philosophical approach to the environment,

wv<upational health and safety, and public health. Earlier

this year, the Enviiohmgntal Protection Agency attempted to
gubvelt trne very moudest lead nhase-down proéram by proposing
rejulations which would have increased the use of lead as a
Jassline additive. That effort has now been retracted, due in
ldrgpegart to the clear evidence, arising from the childhood
lead sckeenzng program, that lead from gasoline contributes
significantly to the continuing problem of lead poisoning in
tnis cudntry. The QOccupational Safety and Health
Administration, conforming to the express wishes uf the Office
of Management and pudget and the Regulatory Reform group at the

Wnite House, 1s preparing to revise the occupational lead
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‘Stdndd[d, a move which 1f successful will permit significant

increases in anbient lgad concentrations in industry. The [
pepartment of Housing and Urban Development, charged by Qne
cuourts to implement the provisions of the Lead ﬁased'Paint
poisoning Prgvention act, has responded by dismantling its
expertise in the area of lead poisoning. Wwithout its research
office, the Department will not be able, even if it wished to’
do so, to determine the effidacy of various strategies which
nave been proposed for abatement of the lead paint problem.
All these moves affect one group particularly: our
chlldr;n. Children are the most sensitive to lead, in terms of
the small amount of lead required to affect them, and in éerms

of the severity of affects observed. ’

at the level of the neuron in the brain, lead intérferes
with chemical processes of information transfer with no
threshhold for its effects. What threshholds appear to eXist
for the effects of lead in children are probably provided by

physiological processes which keep lead from entering the Qréin

. .
_and being taken up by neurons. Once lead enters a neuron, it

is very difficult, if not impossible, to remove it.
Blood lead concentrations are the best indicator for
current exposure to lead; by follcwing these measurements, it

is possible to intervene and hy appropriate medical treatmen!

g
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to remove circulating and peripherally stored lead from"bone
and other organs Possibly before it reaches and is bound to
cells in the brain. on the basis of collaborative research
with Dr. J. Chisolm of Johns Hopkins, we have reported a

significant relationship between levels of lead in blood and a
3 t

biological ‘indication of altered brain chemistry (see fig. 1).

18 .
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' Unnary homovanidlic acid, excreted in 24 b

quanziaiive collecuons, as a funcaon of blood lead

conceniranon un 36 chidren, aged 1448 monshs

Among diseases caused by external agents, the need for
early intervention is compelling in the case of lead poisoning;
based on what is now known of the mechanisms and progress of
the intoxication. Exposure of children to very low levels of
lead adversely affects neurobehavioral development. There are
now several studies, conducted in'this country, England, and
Germany,'demonstrating significant deteriora;ion in children's
intelligénce and behavior associated with what used to be

called "subclinical" or "asymptomatic*® lead poisoning. This

Al
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fact cannut be uveremphasized 1n guiding our evaluation of the

medical approaches to preventing irreversible lead toxicity.
The Very names are indicative of the need for aggressive
screening programs: the nature of low level lead poisoning is
sucn that 1t can and does easily escape detection by
cliniclans. Intervention and treatment is vital before the
effects of lead are uneguivocal and overt. At such stages,
ident1fication can only be made by screening programs, using
the hiodooical indicators of blood alead and erythrocyte
protuporphytion. We have known sinceithgdwork of Byérs in 1943
that, when lead neurotoxicity is recognizable, its long term
segquelae are usually inexorable. The studies of Needleman, in
Boston, and Winneke, in pusseldorf, and yule, in London, ’
exemplify this: the neurologica& deficits in the children
studied persisted long after they were eXposed to lead; lead
exposudre was determined by measurements of tooth lead content,
a marker which sums the overall experience of the child with
environmental lead. It is relevant to note that none of these
children were diagnosed at the time of their active exposure,
as being lead poisoned. '

It has been argued that the effects of lead on intelligence
and learning which have been reported are not large, for
example, amounting to a drop of five points in mean IQ scores.
However, a drop of five points in mean IQ across the range of
1qQ, as was found by Needleman,l will result in a doubling of
the pumber of children with IQé below 70 —-- that is, a doubling

1 yeedleman, H.L., Leviton, A., and Bellingex, D.
Journal of Med. 306:367, 1981.

N
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This'is a serious effect, both for the individuals at risk, and
for the society which must deal with large numbers of
dntrainable, and unproductive members. The Public Health

Service is considering the recommendation that lead screening

be part of the routine clinical evaluation of all children in
this country.
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'young child's brain.

New clinical and experimental information2 indicates that
the unborn child may be at even greater risk for the effects of
lead. Both the male and female parent can coﬁbey 1ead-induced
neurvlogical deficits to their children. FcCr thét reason, the
natiohal lead screening programs need' to be expanded to cover
persons of childbearing age, SO that programs of special
intervention,lsuCh as dietary compensation, may be put in place
to ameliorate the effects 0% lead. Also, information on
prenatal and pregestational effects of lead will aid in
develbping appropriate strategies for assessing the extent of

<
such exposure and methods for controlling it. It is cynical

sthat an ‘administration which repeatedly voices its coéncern for

"cbildren to a bivlogical extreme can disregard the‘gvideﬁce for

lead as a fetotoxin, a reproductive teratogen, @ germ cell

mutagen,_and a neurotoxin of special vigor in its attack on the
. L)

The childhood lead screening program must be retained and
strengthened within the centers for Disease Control. There ate
many compelling medical and public health reasons for this
recommendation. First, in order to design appropriate '
strategies for preventing continuing epidemics of lead
poisonihg on a national basis, such as the continued removal of
lead from gasoline, it is imperative to maintain léad poisoning
as a reportable disease within the Public Health Service
purview. without the documentation available from the
inteFface of the cDC database and the National Health and

2 gilbergeld, E.K.: ‘Behavioral teratology of lead. In J.
yanai (ed) Behavioral Teratology., amsterdam, Elsevier, in press.

3
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serves an, 1avaluable function to provide essential quality
control over the actual measurement of lead in blood of
° children. Bloo% lead measurements are technically difficult to

perform, since the proceé% requires great care in collection
and analytic proceduies} and the actual m;thoddlogy for
measurement -- whether by instrumentation using atomic

- : absorbtion spectrophiotometry or by the newer methods of anodic
stripping voltammetry -- must be repeatedly calibrated, Tﬁe
CDC has developed a national system of proficiency testing, so
that communities, medical personnel, and public health
officials can be assured of the reliability of data on extent
of legd poisoning in their patients, communities and
relatives. There is no assurance that state and local
govérnments would be able to maintain such an ongoing
monituring prograh in the absence of CDC involvement., Most
lmportantly, a national, reliable screening pgogram is needed
to provide the alert program of early detectign and
intervent.ion, Early detection can only be prpvided by
well-funded national programs of screening, using standardized
methodé. As you will hear from other witnesses, it is unlikely
that states and local health agencies can adequately support
Nutrition Exafinarspn Survey (referred to as NHANES), no clear

hildren's blood lead levels and gasoline

correlation between
lead additives would

ave appeared. Second, the CDC oversight
lead screening programs.

Evidence presented before this committee should compel the
judgment that pedically the lead screening programs must be
mayntained. Even from a cost-effective point of view, it is
clear that CDC should continue to run an expanded lead
screening program. Fragmentation of the screening program into
state and local entities will increase expenses, particularly
of such ‘aspects as guality control and data gathering for

?
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publfc health asgessinent purposes. Further, to embark on any
policy which in all likelihood will lead to the diminution, if
not destruction, of the lead screening program, will cause
tremendous costs to accrue from'undéﬁected and hence'hntreated
cases of lead poisioning. 'Provenzano3 has estimated the

costs associated with low level lead poisoning, as shown in
rable 1, as between $500,000,000 and $1 billion. These data,

.&imnudlbuxudhuﬁmhidmuMuwiﬁﬂxudwﬁm
nthe US, 1978

Indrvidusls
aftect Cost factors Costs
(1.000) {1978 doilers; (10¢ dotlars)

B2 TT4* 1518 5.0 117.5°
.6 -189.5 140 056 - 1402
249.7 8338 -— -_ —
' 1208 2577

14,560 X B2 X 04
- 7,702 X 53 x.12

14,500 X (82-04) X .14
7,702 X (53-.12) X 13

3 provenzano, G. “"The social costs of excéssive lead
exposure during childhood.® In Needleman, H.L. Jeditor) Low
revel Lead Exposure, New york, Raven Press, pp. 299-315, 1980.
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calculated 1n 1978, were based on a lower inciqggce rate for
lead poisoning than that recently reported by CDC, so that,
together with the increases in health-associated costs noted by
this committee and others, the real costs of untreated lead
poisoning in this country are conservatively in the range of
billions of dollars.

The destruction of the lead screening program will block

our window on this enormous epidemic. It will obstruct and

- decrease the efforts of community health workers to detect and

ERI

treat lead poisoning. It will eliminate info;mation which
might guide programs of environmental cleanup and éource
control. And it is this fatter aspect which perhaps explains
the special energy with which this administfation has attacked
all aspects of lead poisoning. *“Never send to know for whom
the bell tolls,” admonished the poet Donne; the dismantling of
the lead screening prograh is no less than an attempt to cut .

down the bell and silence the bell ringers by those who do not

wish to hear its warning g{\iFt on its conclusions,
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Vs Miktiskt Thank you very much, Doctor.

Mr Waxman had to leave. 1 am running the whole show. So, I
want to thank you for your testimony, and we are going to hear
rrom Dr., Starfield and Dr. Davis, and then we will move to ques-
tions. ) .

STATEMENT OF BARBARA STARFIELD, M.D.. .\l.l’.ll.'

Dr Srarrieen. Thank you.

| am delighted to be here. 1 am a physician on the staff of the -
Johns Hopkins Medical Institution., I am a member of the Ameri-
can Public Health Association, and 1 am here today on their
behalf, '

| have a longstanding interest in the causes of diseases in child-
hood and devising and evaluating the effectiveness of health pro-
grams to deal with them. : . .

1 know the value of data obtained judiciously and parsimoniously
and am involved in a variety of activities to increase the usefulness
of data.

| know about lead poisoning from a clinical vantage, for I have
personally seen and treated children with it, and I know about it
from a oublic health point of view because of my involvement in
several projects in which lead poisoning was of concern.

Lead poisoning is a significant clinical problem with both acute
and chronic manifestations. Acute toxicity in children, which is
much less common now than it was 20 years ago, produces injury
to the brain. permanent retardation, and sometimes death. Chronic
poisoning. which is insidious in onset, produces behavioral difficul-
ties and neurologic problems that affect behavior and interfere
with learning and education in school. The burden on society from
lead poisoning extends far beyond the handicap suffered by the in-
dividuals affected. For example, the presence of such disabled chil-
dren in a classroom is disruptive and compromises the education of
other children as well as that of the affected children. Failure to
treat and eliminate lead poisoning is pennywise and pound foolish.
It clearly represents a public health initiative in which the cost of
prevention is far less than the cost of treatment and the burden on
society of individuals disabled by the condition. .

Prevention and management of lead poisoning is.a major chal-
lenge. Lead is pervasive in our environment, particularly in-older
cities with dwellings pariited with lead-based paint before its dan-
gers were recognizeQ. Leaded gasoline. has been another major
source of environmental contamination with lead.

Less pervasive but equally damaging is the exposure of children
to lead-containing substances brought home from the workplace by
parents.

Particularly in this era of scarce societal resources, it is impera-
tive that approaches to prevention and management be effective
and that they be efficiently deployed. An information system that
accurately identifies populations at risk, facilitates the targeting of
resources to those populations, and permits an ongoing monitoring
of the effectiveness of those resources is more necessary now than
ever before.
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It is no longer sufficient to know that dollars have been spent on
the problem or that services have been delivered. The takpayer de-
serves to KHow"that the resources are-spent where they are most
needed and in a way that produces a lasting impact.

What information do we need to assure the prudent expenditure
of resources? s

Almost 200 years ago, our forefathers had the wisdom.to insti-
tute regular censuses of the populaticn. Although they did not
know about lead poisoning, the system they devised greatly facili-
tates our understanding of and attack on this and other health
problems. :

Figure 1, on the back of my document, shows what knowledge of
the distribution of lead poisoning tells us about the, problem. This
is a chart of the frequency of lead poisoning according to character-
istics of the census tract areas where children live in Baltimore. It
shows that lead poisonihg is much more common in areas where
poor people live.

Collection of data on the occurrence of illnesses such as lead poi-
soning according to the area where people live is a responsibility of
departments of health in cities. Few cities collect or display their
data in the way shown in this graph, which was an exhibit that I
prepared for testimony in a recent lawsuit to obtain increased re-
sources for schools in locales with a relatively high proportion of
poor children. _

Cities should be encouraged to collect data in this way and
should be given the resources to help them to do it, for it is the
only way that we have to target resources at the local level to
where they are most needed.

The ‘National Center for Health Statistics, through its ongoing
surveys, also provides useful information. Recent data frem one of
those surveys cenfirmed that children in poor families are much
more likely to have evidence of lead poisoning than other children,
and this is the case for the country as a whole. Y
- Tables 1 and 2 show that lead poisoning primarily occurs among
the poor and in central city areas. The data from this survey also
showed that there were large declines in blood lead levels between
1976 and 1980 that are directly attributable to reduced use of lead
in gasoline.

On the basis of these data, collected by the National Center for
Health Statistics, the Environmental Protection Agency reversed
its plan to weaken the restrictions on lead in gasoline. Information
does help to make informed public policy.

The taxpayer has a right to know if our programs, whether they
are organized by Federal agencies, by State agencies, or by local
agencies, are having an impact on the occurrence of lead poisoning.
States and cities should be required to account for their expendi-
tures of funds by demonstrating that they are screening children at
risk and reducing the frequency of lead poisoning, and the Natjon-
al Center for Health Statistics needs to maintain its surveys so
that Congress can oversee national progress in the attack on this
important health problem. .

The attack on lead poisoning involves screening populations at
risk, treatment of children with evidence of the condition, and in-
terventions to prevent reoccurrence of disease. Techniques for

33
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screening are well established and have high reliability and valid-
ity if they are applied appropriately and to those who need them.

Medical management is also well established and efficacious. The
major remaining problem is prevention of reoccurrence or progres-
sion -of toxicity. Where toxicity occurs as a result of lead paint in
homes, the standard approach involves scraping lead-containing
paint ffom surfaces that are flaking or that are within the reach of
young children. ) o ‘

Cities such as Baltimore require landlords to arrange for this

. procedure. However, a study in New York indicated that within a
year or two a high proportion of homes that were “abated” in this
manner were again shedding paint chips containing lead.

Clearly, children who have been identified as lead-poisoned must
be followed to assure that they do not have evidence of new expo-
sure. [t makes no sense to spend resources for screening and treat-
ment if the problem is permitted to recur. . .

Lead control programs involving Federal funds need to account
for the efficient expenditure of those funds; agencies with responsi-
bility to deal with the problem of lead poisoning should be required
to provide information not only about whether they have identified
those children at risk of lead poisoning but whether their identifi-

cation has led to adequate management and prevented recurrence.
*  From a physician’s vantage—a pediatrician’s vantage—I want to

~~ know that efficacious diagnostic and therapeutic techniques are ap-

plied where they are needed and that they have a lasting effect.

I am concerned that there are plans to decrease the collection of
information about public programs. With shrinking public re-
sources, it is even more important now than it ever was before to
assure that programs are working as they should. With cutbacks:in
funds, we need more information about their effect, not less.

It is of particular concern that the National Center for Health
Statistics plans to reduce the frequency of its data collection—in
‘the case of the health examination survey from every 5 years to
every 10 years—and to reduce the number of individuals surveyed
in its household interview survey. :

In the latter instance, reductions in the size of the population
that is surveyed makes it increasingly difficult to identify problems
in subgroups of the population at high risk. And, as we have seen
in the case of lead poisoning, it is these subgroups that are at great
risk of health problems. ,

"We cannot target our programs to deal efficiently with health
problems if we do not know precisely where the problems are,
where the resources are going, and whether the resources are ac-
complishing what they are intendedto accomplish.

In addition to my concern about the population-based informa-
tion from the National Center for Health Statistics, I am concerned
that the lack of rigorous reporting requireéments for lead-poisoning
activities sonducted under the block grants will jeopardize the pro-
gram’s future.

Without information on the scope and impact of expenditures,
future expenditures cannot be justified and maintenance or in-
crease of funds to continue vital surveillance and treatment activi-,
ties may be undermined in budget debate.
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I would hope that Congress would share with me these concerns.
There is no point in supporting scientific and technologic advances
in medical care if“‘we, as a country, cannot devise a systenr to
assure that those who need care actually receive it and do so in a *
way that results in benefit. We cannot know the extent to which
this is the case unless we insist upon appropriate data collection
and accountability for expenditure of public funds.

Thank you. )

' [Attachments to Dr. Starfield’s prepared statement follow:]
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TABLE 1 - PRECENT OF CHILDREN WITH ELEVATED BLOOD LEAD LEVELS, ACCORDING TO FAMILY
INCOME. UNITED STATES 1976-80

) E;m‘iy >r:£04me Alt ‘13[&‘) 7 wm; o “Brm\
\ - -
Less than $6.000 . . 11 * 6 19
S a N Lt . 2 ‘
S6000 10 S14.999 . LN : rli : lg ‘

$15.900 or more k
e et N+ s e = e e e e - ——
Scurce NCHS Hanes n NLW\\QJM fournai ut Medione Sept 2. 1987 . :
N

TABLE 2.—PRECENT OF CHNOREN WITH ELEVATED BLOOD LEAD LEVELS, ACCORDING TO DEGREE OF

URBANIZATION
o - - i Al races o White Black
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Smalter crhies 1less than 1 muilion population) 4 4 2 110
Rural o - ? I 10

b e e e ¢ e e e e e e
T§mal sdmpe e .
Source NCHS  Maney- veported -0 New Engiand Journai of Medicne Sept 2. 1982

STATEMENT OF DEVRA DAVIS

* Ms. Mikurskl. Dr. Davis, [ understand that you have testimony
to be submitted for the regord. Is that correct?

Ms. Davis. That is correct.

Ms. MikuLski. Where is the testimony?

Ms. Davis. [ have it here.

Ms. MikuLski. Could we have a copy? Is that your only copy?

Ms. Davis. No; that's fine, no problem. -

Ms. MikuLski. Now, would you tell us for the record who you are
and the nature of your involvement ir lead poisoning screening di-
agnosis and prevention?

Ms. Davis. Well, my testimony includes a number of my affili-
ations, but I am here today primarily talking as a neighbor and
parent and urban researcher. ' . :

I am on the faculty of Johns Hopkins School of Hygiene and
Public Health, and I am also a reviewer for the national toxicology
program. I am on the governing council for the Society of Occupa-

tional and Environmental Health, and [ have a number of otaher~

affiliations and associations.

‘I guess I will spare you a reiteration, because in my testimony "
every single point that I make has really been made by other .

people here. I-would just say that it is appropriate to invoke the
Chinese proverb that says if you don’t want to know the answer,
. don't ask the question. And right now, this administration is not
asking the question of how pervasive is lead toxicity in our chil-
dren, and it is ironic, as Dr. Silbergeld has remarked, that an ad-
ministration that claims to be so concerned with the welfare of
children is not collecting the minimal data to assess what the

impact is of a number of major initiatives it is launching on the v
health and welfare of our children, as Dr. Starfield has indicated.

I would just tell you briefly about a very personal experience_I
had in my work at Hopkins, because I think in testimony sq?h as T ~—"
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“this it is importa'nt to learn about machines and technologies and

.

how miuch it costs to do tests,.but it is also important to keep in
mind that there are real people involved in these numbers, and I
would like to describe a situation I had last summer, if I may,
when I met a lovely smiling 4-year-old little gi,rll.s‘] much dike my
own, who was named Theresa. ghe was living in an area of east
Baltimore, that ysu know very well, in.a two-bedroom apartment
with her mother, her 14-year-old sister and her 2-week-old niece
who h&d just come from the hospital. 3

[ was a little embarrassed that I had not noticed in the previous
visit that the 14-year-old was pregnant, and all of a sudden, we saw
this child, a low-birth-weight baby. The home had been deleaded
according to Baltimore code, which says you take the lead off up to
4 feet, and if there is pealing leaded paint above 4 feet, the assump- .
tion is that the child would not have contact with it.

The deleading job was done, as many deleading jobs are done in
Baltimore, by picking up labor on’the street, giving them torches
and letting-them go and take the paint off in that fashion. That
has two effects: It poisons the laborers who never are detected be-
cause they just appear to be a little bit lazier than otherwise might
be, or may be drunk, or have the flu, and it also creates latrogenic .
lead poisoning, because they make more lead chips in these homes
because they have been deleaded improperly. ., : '

This-little girl was a lovely little girl, but ghe did not speak com-
plete sentences. After I turned to leave, -as I had talked with her
mother about what things they could be doing, she looked at ‘me
and she said, Mama, me go home by her. In her own way she may
have understood that her home was unsafe. She wanted to come
home with me. .

In this part of east Baltimore, Dr. Julian Chisolm reported to the
mayor of Baltimore last year that for more than 20 years, 4 out of
every 5 children in that area have been lead poisoned.

Obviously, the past has not, worked. I look forward to this com-
mittee’s deliberations on this problem. I think there is no question
but that we must reinstitute cleaning programs; otherwise, we
cannof even assess our progress and provide new solutions so that
‘he Theresas of this world will not want tosleave their homes.

It so happens the National Zoo here has a curator who is deter-
mined that the prize pandas cannot eat city-grown bamboo, be-

" cause it contains too much lead.

We don’t have anyone who can tell us that about our children
right now. It seems that our children have become not unlike the
sentinel pheasants of the 1920’s that Vernon Houk, of CDC, de-
scribes. These were delicate birds kept in cages on the outskirts of
cities, and when they became sick, public officials knew a new epi-
demic was coming.

The need for warning about our children is past. The epidemic of
lead poisoning of American. children demands that we do better,
and I welcome the deliberationsof this committee to reinstitute
lead-screening programs and consider what other programs can be
developed. »

Ms. MikuLski. Thank'you, Dr. Davis. And we.thank you for your -
testimony and hope that you can participate‘in the discussions.

-
L
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. Before I go to the specific questions to some of, the witnesses, I -
haye'a couple of general questions‘that you could help yg with.

he focus of this testimony, and Dr. Davis, you bring up a good

" point about the werkers who are cleaning up lead, the focus of this

testimony has been on children, and ‘I think appropriately so, but
then my questidn is, what about adults and both in terms of more
specifically, I will come back to you, Dr. Silbergeld, in terms of the
pregnant woman. - ' o . .
But what about the impact of the lead poisoning on adults? Is
that detected? Is that even paid any attention to, and should we be

"concerned about adults and their ramifications for health needs?

Does anyope have a comment on that?

Dr. SiEBERGELD. In occupational settings, there have 'beg:n'c}insid-
erable concerns and some monitoring of workers, primgarily in
those industries where one would expect there to be heavy contact
between workers and lead, such as the smeltingsindustry, paint for-
mulation industry, and most recently the steelworking industry’

But therg has been less pointed concern, than perhaps there
should be.’It is always astounding for anyone working in lead to
compare the median or average blood lead levels of any age group
in this country with comparable age groups in other countries: It
leads one fo a very sobering realization of what a lead-exposed -pop-
ulation we are. | - ’

The median blood leads in a country like Sweden or Belgium or
Germany, all industrialized countries, and countries with auto-
mobiles that burn leaded fuels, are many points lower than our
own. Median blood lead in.this country, I believe, is somewhere
around 13 mg/100 ml, and in Belgium or Germany it is around 8.

In Sweden, it is about 6. So, we are all in a"state of undue expo-

sure. Dr. Clair Patterson, of the California’Instituté of Technology, *
has expressed this very;vigorously and in great detail to the Na-
tional Academy of Sciences. With the child -as the focus of atten-
tion, our realization that the very young child is more liable to the

-adverse effects of lead has led to thé logical extension”of that ques-

tion: What about the unborn child, the child in very early stages of '
intrauterine development? - :

As far as we can tell, from some of the very few epidemiological
studies and from the more extensive animal studies, the very, very
young child, the unborn child, is indeed possibly at greater risk
than even the young child, the child 6.months to 2 years, which is
the age group we commonly express conéern about in public
health. . s : )

There is also evidence from the occupational literature in

. humans, and’ from the animal litgrature, that lead is a mutagen of

the germ cells. Its effects may b&~expressed even before parents
conceive the child, and in some way those effects impact deleteri-
ously upon perhaps specifically the neuronal development——

Ms. MikuLskl. Would you say that again?

Dr. SiLBERGELD. There’are now several studies showing that lead
exposure in low levels primarily done in workplace settings, but at’
levels that are not—— .

Ms. MikULSKI. Let me see what is happening.

(Discussion held off the record.] .

-
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Dr. SILBERGELD. - There are several surveys showing that workers
* exposed to lead-producing levels of blood lead which are not that. . _
much different from the American ordinary person not exposed oc- ‘
cupationally; that is why I made the remark at the outset. -

In those workers there is alteration of chromosomes, inhipiti of
fertjlity, and increased rate of spontaneous abortion. e is cqn- 4
cern about the child that is not aborted and does reach térm '
near term ‘and is born alive, but may indeed suffer what appears fo
be neurologic damage. . T R

There is animal data confirming this. ..~ ° |

Ms. MikuLskl. Let me say this: You said that something had hap-
pened to either of the parents that there wHl create damage in
their child’ even before conception? . ;o )

Dr. SiLBERGELD. That is correct.'I think for that reason what we
shqyld be talking about here is an expansion of the lead screening
program to cover those aspects of maternal and child health that
impinge on the outcome of conception. .

Ms. Mikurski. That was my question, and you are talking about
really scréening.adults. * B & Wl ,

Dr. SizBerGELD. That is correct., . o .

' Ms. Mikurskr. When I asked that question about adults, that was
my point. -

x Dr. SiLBERGELD. The only screening we do now is haphazard, par-

ticularly with all the exemptions granted by OSHA in occupational

settings. It should be part of the total public health picture in this

_country’ ,

¢ Ms. Mikuiskl. Are you talking only about people of so-called
childbearing age, or would you see screening of everyone in this
country, including the elderly?” ) . .
. Dr. SiLBERGELD. Well, in the case of females, females are born
with our childbearing apparatus, and we carry it with us until we
finishlthat process, so theye is really no distinction. * - A

In terms of the male, it is not clear yet whether the effects of
lead onsthe germ cell of the male are on those tissues that. produce .
sperm Or On Sperm themselves, which are recréated periodically. *

Ms. MIKULSKL. So, what are you saying?, )

Dr. SiLBERGEFD. I am saying that lead poisoning is a national
problem which affects— -

Ms.. Mikuirskl. No; I asked you, Doctor, are you recommending
screehing of all adults, or only thoselof childbearing age?

" 'Dr. SiLeerceLD. I think that the prudent procedure would be to
screen all adults certainly up to the end of childbearing age, but
with no lower cutoff point. . ;
¢ Ms. Davis. And if I may comment on the kind of screen that -
would be efficient there, it costs about 20 cents to do an erythro-
eyte protoporophoria scréen. This is a very expensive test that can
be done with a finger stick. That is a very expensive test that could -
be done for all persons of childbearing age, as well with children. e
Dr. StarFIELD. I might point vut that the very data systems that
give us information on the prevalence of high lead levels in chil-
dren also give us information on adults. The National Center ‘of
Health Statistics surygy-did do blood levels on adults so you can
- deduct from” that survey populations that are at high risk whether
they are children or adults. N }

.
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Ms. IVI!KULSK! Let me come right back. We probably have an-
other 15 minutes worth of questioning.

‘[Briaf recess.] .

Ms. MikuLski. ‘We are.going to resume the proceedings and we -
will probably meet for about another 10 minutes.

Dr. Siltergeld, I have another queutlon for you.

. We talked about the type of screening.' Earlier we heard fronmi
Mr. Johnson about other sources for lead id addition to two that
we know, paint and gasoline. You heard the questions I raised, par-
ticularly about food and water supply. - Coul you tell me what is
your estimate-about howy severe or dangerous those sources would
be? -

. Dy. SILBERGELD. Well, first, airborne lead and specifically lead
used as an antiknock addltlve in gasoline* js probably the final
source of a-lot of the other sources of lead.that we take into oyr
bodies. That is, as Mr. Johnson pointed out, most of the lead in
food—aside from the special cases of the lead solder in cans—comes
from ultimately the combustion, of lead in vehicles.

A lot of the lead in water comes-ftom the same source. You have

. fallout of gasolin€, lead which ente s surface water, migrates to
ground water, and is tal\cen up by drinking water supplies.

In addition, there are some special cases, including one whith is
ralsmg concern currently, that is, the contrlbutlon of leaded’ water-
pipes, partlcularly in urbap areas. Now, the plumbo-solvency of
piping, that is the ability of piping to leach lead into drlnklng
water, is diréctly correlated withsthe acidity of the water. This may
raise solne other questions related to clean air. As water becomes

more acid, and this has been deémonstrated in Glasgow, the amount
of lead” that is dissolved in the water can go up. Indeed there was a
sort of mini-epidemic of-mild mental retardation among children in
Glasgow, who were drlnkm%’ watgr which wes held in lead-lined

o

containers®in their houses. The reason why the lead came out of
the contaihers was because the water was unusually acid. So that
is another area of concern.

You asked #lso about the contribution of lead in home gardening.
There is, interestingly enough, a study that has been done in Balti-
-more of‘*bhe content, of lead in fruits, vegetables, and(leafy vegeta-

. - bles, specifically tomatoes in home gardens grown;m three inner
01ty neighborhoods in Baltimore, as well as the content of the lead
in the soil of those gardens. The results are to be submitted for
publicatibn to the New England Journal of Medicine. They are
really quite astounding. Very, very high concentrations were
found, some in neighborhoods where there is no lead-painted hous-
ingf so it appears to be quite directly correlated with traffic pat-
terds and airborne lead. Obv1ously, the direct sources of lead for
ingestion would be for "people workmg or playing in their gardens,
children playing in the dirt in those gardens, and people ‘eating !
foodstuffs.from those gardens.

Ms. MikULSKI’ This would be a question for all three of you. Do |
you feel "that the States and local governments, dg you think they
are equipped to perform an ongoing monitoring program—Im

~ going to‘come back now\to statistics—a momtorlng prbgram simi-
lar to what is being done a DC?
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Dr. STarFIELD. Some States and somer cities are. Most are not. It
“is my impression, and I believe it is correct, that the CDC collects
national data. It does not collect data by census tracts. So it is
.unable, really, to tell me exactly what areas of cities have the
greatest problem. . £y

T ha%e asked them for that information and t¥ey indicate that
they don’t collect that way. So there is an enormous amount that

. we can do in terms of technical assistarice to help cities and States
‘develop data systems that can show where the problemsg really are.
The capacity is poorly developed and only in gome places.

Ms.- Mik{jLskt. Do you feel that if we establish a lead program
back as « categorical program, placed responsibility back at CDC,
that some of the problems that you addregs, Dr. Starfield, would be .
met? )

,  Dr. SrarrigLp. I think that it would go a long way forward. I
woyld not like to see a stop though of what was done before be-
cadse there were some gaps in our knowledge before. We rould not
really tell the extent to which our programs were assu ing that,
children who are screened and found positive and then their homes
were abated were, in,fact, becoming repoisoned. There was no way
tp follow up specific children to see the extent to which they were
cured. )

36 there is a lot more we could do .in terms of data and the very
beginning would be to go back to where we were and that is at the
very minimum. ) : .

Ms. Davis. .On that point if I may add, the Center for Disease
.Control reported, I think this February, that there has been 20,000
children who were under medical supervision for lead toxicity at a
time ‘when the. sstimated 600,000 required this supervision. t

Now that suggests that we were, in fact, medically treating less
than 10 percent of all children who may have required medical
treatment and that suggests to me that we certainly, as Dr, Star-
field just said, néeded to have screening at a minimum but also
needed to have more detailed followup.’ N

*Ms. MixuLskr. Well, one of the things that concerns us is that

> .that goes back to Stafe and data gathering, that States are re-
qyuired to submit annual reports to the Secretary of HHS oh which
way they spent their money. .

The form and cgntents of these reports is to be determined by
the Secretary. It is Mr. Waxman’s understanding and mine, howev- *
er, that the Secretary Teft to the State:the judgment as to what\_ - -
these annual reports contain and when they should be submitted.
So far, no State has submitted a report for fiscal year ending Sep-
tember 30, so that there is now no uniformity and continuity, and I
have, again, two questions. pe

Would you expect States to submit the information necessary to
demonstrate ‘effective targeting and accountability with respect to.
lead screening, and if the States don’t submit this information to o
the Secretary, is there any other source for this data? .

Dr. StarrieLd. I would not expect the States to do it. It takes

some work to put together good data.” - ' .

Traditionally,” what is done in reporting is, one reports head
. counts—not even head counts, just the numbers of things, numbers
. of children screened, and you can't tell from the reports whether
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they are the same children belng screened twice or three t,lmes or

) five times, and you can't tell Whether the kids who need-to be

- screened are getting screened. All you know is, this yearewe ~ «
screened so many; next year so many, and so many less, That is. .
not useful as far as public accountability or expenditures of funds. ‘

\ + , I have forgotten now the second part of the question.- .

Ms. MikuLskl If we don’t get it from the States, is there any
other place to get it? R
L Dr. StarrierLp. Oh, yes. The only other place to get 1nformatxon
1 on where the problem< are, are the surveys for the National -
Health Center for Health Statistics. :

You know the plan is to cut back on the frequency of those sur-
veys. -

Dr. SlLBERGELD And they also use the Center for Disease Control
lead screening program for their primary data. :

Ms. MikuLskl. Talk into' the microphone because we can’t. hear
for the record.

Dr. SiLBERGELD. The Hanes health examination and nutritional
survey does do lead levels.

Ms. Mikurskr. If you are gomg to engage in a colloquy, make 1t -

. for the record. '

Dr. StarFIELD. They contract with CDC to do it but it is a nation-
al probability sample that they do it on.

Dr. SILBERGELD. Anotker point, just 'to exemplify somethmg Dr.
Starfield mentioned, is the issue of appropriate targeting so that
you are picking up leldren at the greatest risk for the adverse ef-

¢ fects of lead.

We can get ourselves convinced of a mythology of lead poisoning

. that it is only associated with old housing in disrépair and there-

fore we talk about screening programs in that target. Certainly,

« without the guidance of good statistics and good data, that is likely

to happen. But I remind you that the important study which point-
ed out the effects of low levels, of lead, these so-called symptomatic
or subclinical exposures, was done on children who never would

-have been targeted if we relied on this kind of folk wisdom. Those

were the children in Chelsea, Mass., studied by Needlemen and his
clo ~woxkers {at Harvard. These were not inner- city lead-belt chil-
ren.

Ms. Mikursgl. Well, I want to thank all three of you and every-
one who participated in this hearing, and also the cheering squad. I -
see a group that has been in the back of they room nodding in ap-
proval, shaking their head "in disgust, wringing their hands in,
dismay. , )

! May I ask who you are?

a Ms. Berty RoBinsoN. We are from the lead poisoning prevention

program in Washington, D.C. We are some of the workers.

- Ms. MikuLskr. -Well, we welcome you here and obviously your
heart is in the right place and if only our budget met that. .

- We appreciate the data that you presented to us and also I think,
in addition t6 your'own testimiony, the previous witnesses who
really talked about the nat1ona} consequences of undetected screen-

. ing and undetected followup.
I thlnk some new information has come to light, one of Wth’h 18
_the issue of abatement which I think, being that as we went about
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fixing the problem we did not realize that while we were fixing it

we were creating more problems, which goes again to housing pro-
grams in cities and the kind of workers, and then the impact on
workers I think which-is new. . . )

Then also we apprecigte the fact that you so very clearly.stated
what’gasoline content meéns, not only in terms of air and breath-
ing but in terms of soil, water, and then when you mentioned the
\, urban garden program in Baltimore for peoplé helping themselves
what this would mean. T

That is very startling testimony that we literally are kiling our-
selves and our children. So, we thank you for that testimony.

I would like toleave the record open until such time as the Chair
chooses to close it because I know he wishes to submit additional
information.

I feel secure in saying that I belieye that the Chair will begin to
_examine how we can restore this to a categorical program and im-

plement some of the recommendations that are made today for
both thg humanitarian and economic reasons that have been
stated. ) -

I have not given up on‘the idea of CHAP. It is great to have cate-
gorical programs, and obviously categorical programs do jobs that
block grants don’t do, but I ultimately believe that if we are going
to protect the needs of our children, we need a comprehensive pro-
gram that meets the, needs of children from conception all the way
through the time ofimaturity, and that by establishing that kind of
program, by establishing the principles that we want to achieve in
that program, both preventive that would go beyond early diagnos-
ti¢ and screening programs, that we know have their limitations to
really meet that because it is lead poisoning we have to look out
for; at the same time, those other concerns we have about learning
disabilities and all the things that’ go into early detection and
screening. . _ é

So we will advocate a return to the categorical, I still believe we
need a CHAP. So we thank you for coming and we appreciate it»
very much. r

[The following letter was received for the record:]

—




R ©  STATE OF lLLINOIS

) . 4
OrriCE OF Tuk GOVERNOR
.’ ) : SPRINGFIELD 62706 tt
r JAMES R THOMRSON ' ‘
- Gavgunon .
. ! . Categorical Funding for Lead Posioning Prevention Programs
4 It is the position of the I1linois Depértment off Pubtic Health that any .

fragmentation of the Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant would be
deleterious to the administration of public health programs in communities
throughout the state. |

The concept of health block grants has given states new flexibility to work with
Jocal areas, to permit funding and program flexibility to meet local needs. The N
reduction in need for administrative oveq;ight‘of.many spall programs has helped '
* strengthen health services in a time of reduced funding. The Illinois Tead
poisoning prevention services is a case in point. N ¢
- . . v
- ) Historically, prevention of lead poisoning, particularly from lead based paint ~
has been a significant health initiative at both the state and local public health
. _lévels. As part of the earlier Federal demonstration efforts, I119nois expanded
efforts toeliminate and control.this problem, with particular emphasis on the
N problem of lead based paint in older homes in urban areas. Using a combination of ’
. Federal, state and local resources, the I1linois initiative met and continues to
° meet the specific local needs. Where appropriate, the tocal programs address this
problem and address it with the level of £vailab1e resources which best meets the
s local need.. For example, the City of Chikago has reduced its projected number of
. screenings from approximately 40,000 children to 30,000 because, in part, of the
! declining number of houses with lead hased paint. In the remainder of the
. state/local agencies we expect to increase our screenings from 16,817 in 1981 to
‘ approximately 17,500 in 1982. In addition, in the past 12 months the state has seen
_an increase Tn the number of agencies, inciuding 1ocal health departments, which are
using local resources to provide lead poisoning screenings and follow-up services.

The flexibility of resources inherent in block grants has helped order
priorities at the local level without prescriptive categorical oversight'at thgm
state level, oversight which may well miss direct need service levels.

. o
\ Dismanteling the block grants will no{ help states and localities in assuring
maximum service dollars for locally determined h2alth needs. Congress should °
provide the time necessary for states to develep ana evaluate the block gran
concept. We believe that with time and a reasonably secure resource base the
effectiveness of this approach in meeting the local needs, such as prevénting lead

¥ poisoninc, can be demonstrated. .

- . . ’ ~
"

b *  Hearing date: 12/2/82 . .
4 -

[Whereupon, a.t>1:10 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.] ‘
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